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~ Financial Highlight

CEiEmEE

For the year ended 31 March

BZ3A31BILEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000 % Change
F#ET FEIT SEHEAL
Revenue Wzs 650,801 848,567 (23.3%)
Revenue less cost of inventories WeamE BT ER A
consumed 498,801 647,246 (22.9%)
(Loss) profit before listing expenses XA (B8 ) & F (112,371) 55,091 (304.0%)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable ~ RAFHEA AEEFR
to the owners of the Company (BHE) =M (112,371) 37,749 (397.7%)
(Loss) earnings per share S (EE) &7
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EAREE (Bl (11.2) 4.8 (333.3%)
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS FEHMKLER
As at/For the year ended
31 March
M3A318 BEZALEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
Gross profit margin(%) EFE(%) 76.6 76.3
Net (loss)profit margin (%) 48 (18) FIE (%) (17.3) 4.4
Return on total assets (%) BEERIHRE(%) N/ATRE R 8.6
Return on equity (%) [ENEE:ESC7) N/ATE H 15.1
Current ratio (times) mENLE (1) 0.8 1.8
Quick ratio (times) BB R (5) 0.7 1.8
Gearing ratio (%) (Note) BELE(%) (M) 32.4 22.9
Interest coverage (times) FEBELE (F) N/ATE A 10.9

Note:

N/A denotes not applicable

Gearing ratio equals to interest-bearing debts divided by total equity

attributable to owners of the Company as at the year end.
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Chairman’s Statement A

FREME

| am pleased to present the annual report of Palace Banquet
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
“Palace Banquet” or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2020 on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
"Directors”) of the Company.

The Group has been striving to provide one-stop wedding
banquet services to our customers since 2006 under two brands
name, namely “tfF (Palace)” and “Royal Courtyard (J&%8)". The
Group offers different types of services with different purposes
and unique theme, catering for the needs of a wide range of
customers. The Group has successfully consolidated its leading
position in the industry as a full-service restaurant group in Hong
Kong.

With over ten years of experience in organizing banquets, the
Group pursues ongoing innovation from a variety of aspects,
including dishes, reception services, atmosphere and venue
arrangements. The Group’s restaurants are strategically located
in prime locations with convenient access to public transport,
especially railway stations, providing banquet guests with quality
and highly accessible options, thus further expanding footprint of
the empire of banquet for Palace Banquet.

Chan Shou Ming B &
Chairman % /&

RARBRREEERBERAR (A28 EF ([E
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X Chairman’s Statement

EEME

However, given the uncertainties over the global economy arisen
from Sino-US trade tensions, and the fact that domestic consumer
market was in the midst of widespread social movements in the
second half of the year, which brought operational uncertainties
to players in retail and catering industry, 2019 represented a year
of difficulties for the development of the banquet market in Hong
Kong.

At the beginning of 2020, COVID-19 spread rapidly across the
world. To avoid being exposed to the virus, consumers preferred
to stay indoors, avoid dining out and practice social distancing,
which led to a significant decrease in domestic demand for
catering and banquet service in the first quarter of 2020. In
order to curb a bigger outbreak of the pandemic in Hong Kong,
the Hong Kong government subsequently introduced a series
of restrictives, including isolation and quarantine measures and
limitations on the availability of commercial activities and social
gatherings. Since late March 2020, restrictions on the number
of people in public gatherings have been imposed and multiple
epidemic prevention regulations related to catering industry have
been implemented, which inevitably create a negative impact on
the catering and banquet market in Hong Kong.

Even though the society still holds a cautious and wait-and-see
attitude towards the development of the pandemic, our team
remains diligent. With limited control, we continue to maintain
close contact with our guests, offer flexible banquet solutions and
provide our guests with satisfactory banquet services. The Group
will continue to enhance our efforts in implementing hygiene
measures in our restaurants, so as to protect the safety and health
of our staff and guests. We will also adopt a sound cost-control
and risk management strategy to deal with the ever-changing
environment. | hereby express my gratitude to all our diligent
staff, as well as our landlords for their willingness to offer rental
adjustment for our restaurants at this difficult time.

I
i ‘llllllllllll‘l

Am - BREEEITHPANTRBESZRAETE
MERHBENSE T FRRNBEZEEHE LT
REEREREELETRKIRERE 2019527
BEEMHERBHN—F-

2020 9] * COVID-19fE R IKIRRELE  HEE AR
TRERA BERABEEN BRI BERE
B REERBE BEERLREGRIEE2020F 8
EMHFRAR B - BB B BRI A EBERE—F
RRERE R —REHEE OO EERER
Z RO BEREEHEANNLEREESE 72020
FIAEMBRHNAR I BENAZ X EHEZE
BEEBRENLERY B HEEERNED
MGEK A ERE-

BEMHEHREBERRDAFEELBENEE  KE
BEEFDAEERT  EEHEROBRT  HEHR
EERETHE REHEINEHEGHR RETR
HIBENE IR - AREFEE INREBNF LR
i REEIREZNREMER  WIRBUSHEAK
A EREIERE  WENFBZENRE - A
AEMEHEEE TR TEU UEETREARE
BiHe HERRK-
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Chairman’s Statement A

The society of Hong Kong is highly adaptable. Looking ahead,
Palace Banquet believes that the socio-economic development
will revive and be stabilized in the coming year following the
subsidence of the pandemic, and is fully confident in the
prospect of the banquet and catering industry in Hong Kong.
Palace Banquet will continue to observe the changes in market
environment, identify new strategic restaurant locations for long-
term deployment and increase the convenience and accessibility
of its restaurant network. In addition, the Group will enhance
its services and quality of its dishes to further expand its daily
catering business at dinner and high-tea times, expand its income
sources and market share and provide diversified driving forces for
the Group's long-term development.

At last, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank the
management team and staff for their unremitting efforts, as well
as all the shareholders, investors, customers and business partners
for their continuing support. Palace Banquet will continue to
grasp opportunities and strive to create greater interests for the
shareholders.

Chan Shou Ming
Chairman
26 June 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN R

The Group is a full-service restaurant group in Hong Kong offering
Cantonese dining service and banquet service including wedding
banquet service.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

According to the statistical table on restaurant receipts published
by the Census and Statistics Department (“C&SD") of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region, the value and volume of
Chinese restaurants receipts in 2019 decreased by approximately
9.9% and 12.0% respectively compared with the whole year of
2018.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has a severe negative impact on the
catering industry in Hong Kong. The sentiments of customers
on hosting and/or attending banquet was adversely affected.
Based on the management’s experience, the first quarter of a
calendar year is usually the peak season for non-wedding banquet
service of the Group. In 2020, during the material time, the
Government imposed a series of prevention and control measures
on catering premises to prevent the spread of COVID-19 including
restrictions on the number of diners per table, requirement of
minimum distance between each table and maximum capacity.
Such measures have brought negative impacts on the business
environment for dining service providers. Most of the non-
wedding banquet service of the Group booked in February
and March in 2020 were either cancelled or deferred to a later
period in order to comply with the Government latest prevention
measures of COVID-19. The Chinese restaurants receipts in
the first quarter of 2020 published by C&SD was significantly
decreased by approximately 39.6% in value and 40.9% in volume
compared with the first quarter of 2019.

Due to this adverse business environment, it was the first time
since the financial year of 2016 that the Group reported loss for a
full financial year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

As at 31 March 2020, the Group continued to operate
18 Chinese full-service restaurants under two brand
names, namely, “t2/F (Palace)” and “Royal Courtyard (/&
78)". Two restaurants, namely The One (Royal Courtyard)
Restaurant and Shek Mun Restaurant, under the brand
“Royal Courtyard (f8%8)" possess outdoor garden for holding
wedding ceremonies. As disclosed in the Prospectus, two
restaurants namely, Causeway Bay Restaurant and Mong Kok
Restaurant had ceased operation in May 2019 and June 2019
respectively in accordance with the Group’s plan. During the year
under review, Prince Edward Restaurant also ceased operation

AEEREE-H2EARGUEEEE RHEEXE
HIRF M B RTS - BIRIEERSS

1T MO

BEESFNTREBRGSE ([BFKRFE]) A
R BRI ST ER - 2019F R BEB IR BE R
2D RR2018F2F M 419.9% N 12.0% °

COVID-19MEBEBRE R BERTEENEREGAF
2 HEFPRNPE SHEEEMIBEERTFIT
EZ-REEEENGSR  AEEBERBHEZEE
BAEFRFHEZS - P2020FEHBERE - BFHER
BRI — ZE B R i - LARS 1E COVID-194&EL 6
ERFIERREAZ  BTRERZENREER&
E=fEH - EEEEAZESRBHENMNEIRET
REEF L -12020F2 A K3 ARAAEETBF HIEE
ERBH - KB REBEE SR - BT BN &
FTEICOVID-193BR B  BUN 5T BE FT A 520204F
BFERAEERGEEEREE LS FIE2019F 5%
KIER 2 #939.6% 5240.9% °

BRI E MO EEIRE  AEEB2016FMBFE
VATR & IRt BE M A B SR R SR 1S 85 18

¥ EIRE

7202063 A31H  AEBEEMMEREEELEE
18EFRR2ERIEVER - B [T K [1E%t] - [12
75 | AR T HRMEE - BlThe One (&%) BE#E & A
FIERE - RAEINMEE - A] AR BRITER - R
ERAMERE BEAEENTE  MEEE (BRGE
EEEREALE)EDRIR201945H %20194%6
AFLEEE -DEFERN KT BEIIRR2020%2 A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

in February 2020. All three restaurants ceased operations, upon
expiry of their respective leases.

During the year under review, two restaurants, namely, Kwun Tong
Restaurant (as disclosed in the annual report of the Company
dated 14 June 2019) and Tsuen Wan Nan Fung Restaurant (as
disclosed in the announcement of the Company published on 17
June 2019), commenced business in July 2019 and September
2019, respectively.

The following table sets out the movement of the number of
restaurants we operated during the financial years indicated:

EEEN R

f
4

i

Rz —WEZEEMNEZENBNERREL

1t

o

K o

s

CEFEAN MEBE BEEBE (A2 HH
B2019F6 A14RMFREZ) REEFERE (10
RAER2019F6 A17BATTIBMAEEE) DRI
201957 A K%2019F9 AR 27 -

TRENBMXATRMBFEL LN EEHER

Year ended 31 March

BZE3A3MBILLEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
Number of restaurants at the beginning of FOWBEHE
the year 19 17
Number of newly opened restaurant(s) during FRHHBBIENEE
the year 2 3
Number of closed restaurant(s) during the FRNAEREERNEE
year (3) (1)
Number of restaurants at the end of the FRIBEHE
year 18 19

According to the Company’s expansion plan disclosed in the
Prospectus, the Company intended to open four restaurants
in Kwun Tong, Sham Shui Po, Shatin and Wong Tai Sin by the
year ended 31 March 2020. The Group opened its Kwun Tong
restaurant in July 2019 and had entered into a lease agreement
with a landlord, an Independent Third Party, for the Group’s
proposed new restaurant at 7/F Dragon Centre in Sham Shui Po
(as disclosed in the announcements of the Company published
on 24 January 2020 and 29 April 2020, respectively). However,
the uncertain and volatile business environment rendered the
estimation of the investment payback and breakeven period
difficult. In view of that, the Group terminated the lease
agreement of 7/F Dragon Centre in Sham Shui Po (as disclosed in
the announcement of the Company published on 12 June 2020)
and slow down the pace of opening new restaurants. Nonetheless,
the Company will consider and open new restaurant(s) as and
when the opportunity arises after conducting a feasibility analysis.
This can be evident by the opening of the Company’s Tsuen Wan
Nan Fung restaurant which was not included in the Company’s
original expansion plan.

RIEBBRERAFEENARAETAS  A2FHEN
HZE202083A31BIEFEEEE  AKT - DHK
FEAMFAZREOEAE - REE S K2019F7 A HRE

AR WA B RS T LB O 7B 2
FHAEE (AR FE D RIR20205 1 A24H &2020F
AR29BFTFIBE M AN ERE) BEE (BULFE=7)F]
VHEWE - A EERETHEBLEESTIE F
REBH U HFTIRERRE KT FEE - B 7RIt

REEDRIDFKEFAERL7TENRE R (1
ARAEFR2020F6 S12BATFIBAN A EHEE) - WK
12 B RRFTEE M 251K o SR AN UL - AN B S A B A 2R
FeRFTEE TR TR E BFARITEE  Er8FE
RARFARZERLEE v RATEARR G AHE
FeRrEIA -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN R

During the year under review, the Group had undergone and
completed renovation of certain existing restaurants in the first-
half financial period, which is usually the low season for the
Group’s banquet services as disclosed in the Prospectus. For
details, please refer to “Business — Renovating our existing
restaurants to maintain competitiveness” in the Prospectus.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue decreased by 23.3% from approximately
HK$848.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2019 to
approximately HK$650.8 million for the year ended 31 March
2020. Such decrease in revenue was a combined result of:

- the decrease in revenue from comparable restaurants
sales by approximately 29.8%, which was far-off from the
Group’s past trend of decrease in comparable restaurants
sales i.e. ranging from 1.1% to 4.6% in the previous three
financial years, primarily due to the social events and the
outbreak of COVID-19 in the peak season for the Group's
banquet services. The outbreak of COVID-19 has significantly
contributed to the decrease of trade receivable as at 31
March 2020 as compared with 31 March 2019 from HK$6.7
million to HK$0.4 million and trade payables from HK$16.2
million to HK$2.1 million due to temporary suspension of
most of our operation.

- the increase in revenue attributable to two restaurants
opened in July 2019 and September 2019 which partially
sets off the decrease of revenue as mentioned above.

The following table sets for the comparable restaurant sales, guest
count and average spending per customer:

CEFEAN  AEBEERVERABNLRAETRE
BEEIT MBI MAREREMNE - MBURE
AIFBUAE AAREESRBHIAE - FEFLHA
RERR [ %55 - B RPIRBEBEARFTEF ] -

Bt %% B 8

g
AREBRNWFBEE2019F3A31HIEEEND
848.6 A BB 23.3% EHE202063A318 1
FEMAK650.8BEE T - WA D TIERUTEIE

HIARE R B PR :

- AHEZMEEWSER#29.8% B EXR

EEATLEEEE THRNBERAEER (BIH
LR E BRI =AY RFEANT1.1%E
A6%MBERD)  WMIHEEHRBEEMLESE
HREAEEESREHEEEIZECOVID-19
FrEe W202043A31H © E2201943 A31HH
Lt - COVID-19% BB S8 E Z AR E
SENFIERTAEEBTRI62EE ST B
RNERLE0AEEETR21B8EBTT  HE
ZHRNEMARE D FEEE R FW\EATE -

- R fEDEZE 20197 A KX 2019F9 A M E 2k

sIE N BBy H i ) Y EiR A o

TRIEATLERHER  BEEABBATEE

Year ended 31 March

HZE3A31BLLEE

2020 2019

20205 20194

Number of comparable restaurants AL B ES B 13 13

Comparable restaurant sales (HK$'000) AR ERE (TET) 472,326 672,367

Guest count of comparable restaurant sales ('000) AJLLEESEBEET A (TA) 3,979 5,167

Seat turnover rate of comparable restaurants AL EEEA R (FIEE)

(Note) 1.7 1.9
Average spending per customer of comparable AILLBEAEE (BT)

restaurants (HK$) 119 130

Palace Banquet Holdings Limited & 3245 % AR A 7 70



Management Discussion and Analysis

Note: Seat turnover rate equals guest count during a year divided by
seating capacity of the relevant restaurants and further divided
by the number of operating days in the relevant year. Seating
capacities of our restaurants are based on the standard number of
seats of each restaurant only and does not reflect occasional seating
adjustment at peak hours/seasons or public holidays. Our Directors
consider that such occasional adjustment should not affect the
reliability of the seat turnover rate in the table above.

Cost of food and beverages

The Group's cost of food and beverages decreased by approximately
24.5%, from approximately HK$201.3 million for the year ended
31 March 2019 to approximately HK$152.0 million for the year
ended 31 March 2020. The decrease was in line with the decrease
in revenue during the year ended 31 March 2020. The cost of food
and beverages as a percentage of revenue remained relatively stable
at 23.4% (2019: 23.7%) as ordering of food and beverages are
closely related to opening days/hours of restaurants.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit decreased by approximately 22.9% from
approximately HK$647.2 million for the year ended 31 March
2019 to approximately HK$498.8 million for the year ended
31 March 2020. The decrease was in line with the decrease in
revenue during the year ended 31 March 2020. The gross profit
margin remained relatively stable at 76.6% (2019: 76.3%).

Staff costs

The Group's staff costs decreased by approximately 10.8% from
approximately HK$260.2 million for the year ended 31 March
2019 to approximately HK$232.2 million for the year ended
31 March 2020. Such decrease was mainly due to headcount
reduction as a result of restaurant closure and using lesser number
of part-time employee as compared to last financial year as a
result of suspension of banquet services. The staff costs as a
percentage of revenue increased to 35.7% (2019: 30.7%). Such
increase was mainly due to a portion of staff remuneration being
fixed in nature and therefore, if the Group's revenue decreases, its
weight towards the revenue will increase.

Property rentals and related expenses

The Group’s property rentals and related expenses decreased by
approximately 65.1% from approximately HK$191.2 million for
the year ended 31 March 2019 to approximately HK$66.8 million
for the year ended 31 March 2020. Such significant decrease
was mainly attributable to reclassification of lease expense on
the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 for the year ended 31 March
2020. Under HKFRS 16, only the lease payments under short-term
leases (namely, less than 12 months) or leases of low-value assets
and variable rents that do not depend on index or rate (namely,
contingent rent) are included in property rentals and related
expense.

EEEN R

Wizt B FERFRABEEABG A BRERERES  F5
AT R FZ a8 & H BLat 5 - ZAPTA B 8 B Bl (E 1z
BB IR EE R E W T RBREIERFER
FEH RN BB EBIEL B - IR EE
BREANESEEETEZE LRITBEGER
A SElE

B

NEBERKAHEZ2019F3 8318 IEFEND
201 3BEEB TR 24 5% EHE20203A318
IEFEMNHI152.08 85 - HERDHEEE2020
FIA3MBEFEMRER BT - B AR
=R B DL RIERAEIETE - £23.4% (20194 ¢
23.7% ) HESGTEEAEMNE X B8 HEE L
FERE

EFRER R

ANEBEMNBHEZE2019F3831H IEFENLH647.2
AEBITRLH229% E2EE2020F3A31HIEFE
K)%)498.8 B &8 T o HHER L BE1E 2202043 A 31
HIEFEMRER DB - EFERERBEETE B
76.6% (20194 1 76.3% ) °

ETIRA

AEBETIRABREZ2019F3A31BIEFENY
2602E BB ILELHI10.8%EEE2020943A31H
IEFEML23228 88 BIRARDTIEERH
REEBEASAFHE UEKESRESEESREE
THAER ERFBRER BV B TR ARG E
MBS INE35.7% (20194 1 30.7% ) - BT
AERFHOE DN EEHRE S ETHFHER
EMWE - At MAEERERD  EEKEtE
1 _EFt e

MEEE R EEMAX

REEMERS RABAXHEZE201993A8318 1
FEMN1N2B8E BT H65.1%EEE2020F
3A3THILEFEMNHNE6.8EEBIT - MEME MEE
A AERD T EEHREEE2020F3 8318 1EF
EERNRMNE ST BHRE LN E 160N EHER TS
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN R

Depreciation

Under HKFRS 16, there was HK$118.6 million of depreciation
recognized for the year ended 31 March 2020 for the
amortization of the right-of-use asset. Excluding this first-time
recognized amortization on the right-of-use asset, the Group's
depreciation of property, plant and equipment increased to
approximately HK$34.3 million (2019: HK$25.5 million) mainly
due to amortization of initial set-up cost of new restaurants and
renovation cost capitalized for existing restaurants.

Listing expenses

Listing expenses comprise professional fees and other expenses
in relation to the Listing. There is no such expenses for the year
ended 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$17.3 million) as the Company
has listed its shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
since February 2019.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased to HK$22.7 million for the year ended 31
March 2020 (2019: HK$5.1 million) due to the initial adoption
of HKFRS 16. There was an amount of approximately HK$21.0
million relating to interest on lease liabilities recognized under
HKFRS 16.

(Loss) profit for the year

With the combined effect of (i) decrease in revenue, (ii) increase
in depreciation of property, plant and equipment and financial
cost after initial adoption of HKFRS 16 and (iii) impairment loss of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, the loss for
the year was approximately HK$112.4 million, while profit for the
year ended 31 March 2019 was approximately HK$37.7 million.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group's objectives in managing capital are to safeguard its
ability to continue as a going concern.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes bank borrowings, net of bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Group, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure of the Group periodically
and may take different measures, including the payment of
dividends, the issue of new shares and raising of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group's liquidity requirements primarily relate to the working
capital needs (mainly for procurement of food and beverages
from suppliers, staff costs, property rents and various operating
expenses), providing catering and banquet services and working
capital needs for loss making period, and the principal source of
funds is mainly from working capital generated internally from
the Group's operation, bank borrowings and the net proceeds
received from the Listing.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
(including time deposits) were approximately HK$139.0 million
(2019: HK$242.6 million). As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s total
current assets and current liabilities were approximately HK$183.7
million (2019: HK$289.4 million) and approximately HK$238.5
million (2019: HK$158.4 million), while the current ratio of the
Group was approximately 0.8 times (2019: approximately 1.8
times). The decrease in current assets is mainly due to decrease
in bank balances and cash. During the year, there was about
HK$43.7 million for acquiring property, plant and equipment for
opening new restaurants and renovating existing restaurants;
about HK$12.5 million for repayment of bank borrowings and
the remaining decrease in bank balances and cash (including
time deposit with maturity over three months) of about HK$47.4
million is mainly due to operating loss whereas the increase in
current liabilities is mainly due to the adoption of HKFRS 16 and
the recognition of current lease liabilities of HK$123.8 million.
Excluding the current leased liabilities, the current ratio as at 31
March 2020 was 1.6 times and will result in net current assets of
HK$68.9 million. The adoption of HKFRS 16 has no impact on the
financial covenant of the bank borrowings.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s total borrowings amounted
to approximately HK$44.8 million (2019: approximately HK$57.3
million). The borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and repayable on demand which carried floating interest rate of
1-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus 1% to 2.5% per
annum and Hong Kong dollars best lending rate minus 1.5% to 2%
per annum.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s gearing ratio was approximately
32.4% (2019: 22.9%), which is calculated based on the interest-
bearing debts divided by total equity attributable to owners of
the Company as at 31 March 2020 and multiplied by 100%.
The increase in gearing ratio was mainly due to the loss incurred
which resulted to significant decrease in equity even the bank
borrowings was decreased as at 31 March 2020. The Directors,
taking into account the nature and scale of operations and capital
structure of the Group, considered that the gearing ratio as at 31
March 2020 was reasonable.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN R

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The capital expenditure during the year under review was primarily
related to expenditures on additions and renovation of property,
plant and equipment for the Group’s new restaurants and
maintenance of existing restaurants.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the transactions of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong dollar and the Group is not exposed to any significant
foreign exchange exposure.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had approximately 279
employees (2019: 880 employees). The significant decrease in
the number of employees was due to the outbreak of COVID-19
in 2020. In view of temporary closure and suspension of certain
restaurants of the Group, the dismissals were made in accordance
with the Labour Ordinance. After reopening the restaurants, the
Group has re-employed certain laid-off employees to continue our
business operations.

During the year under review, three senior management team
members, namely Mr. To Kin Hung (as the head of dim sum of the
Company), Mr. Chan Ting Pong (as the head of human resources
of the Company), and Mr. Wong Kin Lam (as the head chef of the
Company) left the Group in October 2019, November 2019 and
March 2020, respectively. The vacancies of the senior management
team were filled by internal promotion after year end.

The Group offers competitive wages and other benefits to our
restaurant employees, and make salary adjustments in response
to the local labour market conditions. Our staff costs primarily
consisted of salaries, allowances, and other benefits, contributions
to retirement benefits scheme and Director’s emoluments.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant to
the resolution passed on 25 January 2019 to give the eligible
persons (as mentioned in the following paragraph) an opportunity
to have a personal stake in our Company and help motivate them
to optimise their future performance and efficiency to our Group
and/or to reward them for their past contributions, to attract and
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Management Discussion and Analysis

retain or otherwise maintain on-going relationships with such
eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of
our Group, and additionally in the case of executives, to enable
our Group to attract and retain individuals with experience and
ability and/or to reward them for their past contributions.

Eligible participants of the share option scheme include (a) any
executive director of, manager of, or other employee holding
an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in any
member of our Group, any full-time or part-time employee, or
a person for the time being seconded to work full-time or part-
time for any member of our Group; (b) a director or proposed
director (including an independent non-executive director) of any
member of our Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of any
member of our Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any
member of our Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business or joint
venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of our Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any member of
our Group; (g) an associate of any of the persons referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (c) above; and (h) any person involved in the
business affairs of the Company whom our board determines to
be appropriate to participate in the share option scheme.

No share options has been granted since the effective date of the
share option scheme and there are no outstanding share options
as at 31 March 2020.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2020, the deposit placed for a life insurance policy
amounting to approximately HK$15.2 million (2019: HK$15.1
million) was pledged to secure the Group's bank borrowings.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not hold any significant
investments.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the year under review, the Group had no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The COVID-19 outbreak and the subsequent quarantine and
distancing measures imposed by The Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region have had a negative impact on
the operations of the Group. Although the financial performance
of the restaurants might not be fully returned to the level before
the COVID-19 in the upcoming financial year, the operating
performance of the restaurants in April and May 2020 was
gradually improving.

The Group has been proactively negotiating with landlords on rent
concession and reduction, and adjusted the operating hours of the
restaurants and roster of staff members in order to optimise staff
and other operating costs.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group is still in the
process of assessing the impacts of the COVID-19 outbreak on
the Group's performance in year ending 31 March 2021 and
is currently unable to estimate the quantitative impacts on the
Group.

Saved as disclosed above, no significant events affecting the
Company occurred since 1 April 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report.

PROSPECTS

The past financial year was particularly challenging for the Group
due to the outbreak of COVID-19 and economic recession in
Hong Kong. The Board is cautiously optimistic about the future
of catering industry in Hong Kong. The Group will continue to
monitor the latest development of the market and adopt cost
control to maintain our position as one of the leading Chinese
full-service restaurant groups in Hong Kong.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float of at least 25% of the issued
Shares from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The net proceeds from the Listing (after deducting underwriting
fees and the listing expenses to be borne by the Group) (the “Net
Proceeds”) was approximately HK$92,734,000. Up to 31 March
2020, the Company has utilised approximately HK$26.7 million
of the Net Proceeds for the purposes as set out in the Prospectus,
representing approximately 28.8% of the Net Proceeds.

EEEN R
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100.0% 92,734 26,733 66,001

The unused proceeds are placed into authorised financial
institutions and/or licenced banks in Hong Kong. As at the date of

FrpRaRTT
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RAFEHRAY REMSHERAEHEL

this annual report, there was no change of the proposed use of
proceeds from those disclosed in the Prospectus.

DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy and the declaration
and recommendation of dividends are subject to the decision
of the Board after considering the Company’s ability to pay
dividends, subject to Shareholders' approval were applicable. The
Directors will take into consideration, among other things, the
financial results, operations, liquidity and capital requirements
of the Group, general business conditions and strategies,
future business plans of the Group and legal restrictions when
determining whether or not to recommend and declare dividends.
The Board will also review and reassess the dividend policy and its
effectiveness on a regular basis or as required.

B MARNEBRERMBNES -

RERREBX

ARBDEMEHE - ME K MEFHRNBE T4
ZRANAXIMNEENENRHESTSIRE - AL
PERALE (HER) - EREESTEZIRMN RE IR
B BEREE (EPEE) A AKENTHESE 2
B RBESNEAENR BREHRBLERE A
KERRKEB B LEERS - EFSTHEHK
BEREFNENTERERR AR -

<

| A

<

&

Annual Report 2020 &%
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EEEN RN

After assessing the cash flows, working capital required for current &FHHRESTE BATEFIREERHERAEET T
challenging business environment and low-season in the first-half E E¥FATHFLEEESHE S TERMER
of the financial year of the Group, the Board does not recommend 202093 A31 B IFFBFE S REARL S (20194 :
the payment of a final dividend for the financial year ended 31 %) -

March 2020 (2019: Nil).

As originally stated in the Prospectus, the Board recommend FABREREZRLHE  EZERENRLOIEF
dividends of approximately 30.0% of the profit and total ERKRERNLAREEATEDRGRERT ERE2E
comprehensive income after tax available for distribution of the UZEAAFEXI30.0%MIRE » AT - AR RNE BN AF
Group to the Shareholders in the coming financial years. However, [Ei%{5EE B2 fEERMNES

as the Group recorded loss this year, no dividend is recommended.
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Report of the Directors

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal businesses of its subsidiaries are operating Chinese
restaurants in Hong Kong.

The discussion and analysis of the Group’s business, financial
results and future prospects is set out in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

There are certain principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group.

Risk relating to commercial real estate rental market

All of the restaurants of the Group are operated on leased
properties. If the Group is not able to enter into new lease
agreements or renew existing lease on commercially acceptable
terms, the Group's profitability, market share and growth may be
adversely affected.

Risk relating to increase in procurement costs for food and
beverages

The profitability of the Group depends significantly on its ability
to anticipate and react to changes in procurement costs of food
and beverages. The availability and prices of food supplies can
fluctuate and be volatile and are subject to factors that beyond
our control.

Reputation Risks

The Group operates the business under two brand names, namely,
“I2JfF (Palace)” and “Royal Courtyard (/2%8)". If the Group fails
to maintain and protect its intellectual property, or if any third
party misappropriates, dilutes or infringes the Group’s intellectual
property, the value of the Group’s brands may be harmed, which
may prevent the Group’s brand from achieving and maintain
market acceptance.

Even if the use of identical or similar trademarks, brands, and
logos by an infringing restaurant do not confuse customers, the
distinctive nature of the Group’s brand image could be blurred.
Any failure to protect or safeguard the intellectual property
rights of the Group could materially affect its business, financial
condition and results of operations.
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_Report of the Directors
EEBHRE

Compliance Risks

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in
jurisdictions in which the Group operates, the Group is required
to obtain or renew the licenses and permits for operating its
restaurant business, including general restaurant licence, liquor
licence, water pollution control licence and other approval or
permits, including endorsement to serve certain foods. Going
forward, if the Group fails to obtain or renew all the necessary
licenses or permits for its operation in a timely manner, it may
be subject to fines, suspension of operation for a while and/or
cease operation in the worst scenario, which could materially and
adversely affect the profitability of the Group.

The restaurant licensing compliance committee has been set up
to oversee the Group’s licensing compliance matters and the
implementation of the relevant policies. The committee will also
report to the Board at least four times a year.

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied with
the relevant laws and regulations that may cause a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group in the event
of a material breach or non-compliance. During the year under
review, there was no material breach or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
(“ESG") POLICIES AND PERFORMANCES

The Group is committed to ensure that all business activities are
economically, socially and environmentally sustainable. It has
identified various ESG areas and has taken measures to control
the environmental and social impacts during its operations. During
the year under review, the Group has ensured all applicable ESG
laws and regulations are strictly complied with and notable effort
is spent on various aspects of the corporate social responsibility,
including greenhouse gas reduction, development and training
opportunities for employees, environmental compliance, health
and safe work environment for employees.

A separate ESG Report is also published on the Stock Exchange
website and the Company's website.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set forth in the consolidated financial statements on pages 59 of
this annual report.

The dividend policy is stated in the section headed “Dividends and
Dividend Policy” on pages 17 and 18 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
23 September 2020 to 28 September 2020, both days inclusive,
during which no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to determine the identity of members who
are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM to be held on 28
September 2020, all share transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Share Registrar, Tricor Investors Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 22 September 2020 for registration.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the five years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements or
the Prospectus, is set out on page 140 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2020
was 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 27 of the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of
their holding of the Company’s securities. Intending holders
and investors of the Company’s shares are recommended to
consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt as to
the taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing for,
purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in the shares. It is
emphasised that none of the Company or its Directors or officers
will accept any responsibility for any tax effect on, or liabilities of,
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holders of shares in the Company resulting from their subscription
for, purchase, holding, disposal of or dealing in such shares.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities during
the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out on note
36 and page 62 and to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the Company's reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the Articles and the
Companies Law, Cap.22 of the Cayman Islands, included share
premium and other reserves less accumulated loss totaling
approximately HK$83,687,000 (2019: HK$87,201,000).

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made total charitable contributions
amounting to approximately HK$996,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The customers of the Group mainly consist of walk-in customers
of the general public. As such, the Directors consider that it is not
practicable to identify the five largest customers of the Group, and
the Group did not rely on any single customer during the year.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the total purchases from
our Group's five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 34.5% (2019: 30.8%) and our largest supplier
accounted for approximately 9.1% (2019: 6.9%) of our Group's
total purchases.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates or any
shareholders (who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned
more than 5% of our Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in any of the Group’s top five suppliers during the year
under review.
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AATRANEBmREE2020F3 431 HILFERMEE
FEHISHAANERE2E M A M HRRME36 -

Ao kA E

720203 A31H ARG A S RFEE (RIEAA
NHESBEEADENRERNRATE) BERMEER
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group maintains good relationship with its employees and
provides competitive remuneration package and continuous
trainings to retain and motivate the employees.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to sustain
its operation. The Group strives to provide one-stop wedding
banquet services and diversified services and menu offerings to
the customers.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Reporting
Year"), there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its employees, suppliers and/or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Reporting Year and as at
the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Shou Ming (Chairman)

Ms. Chen Xiao Ping (Chief executive officer)
Ms. Qian Chunlin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Koon Yuen Windaus
Mr. Ng Kwok Tung
Mr. Yue Ming Wai Bonaventure

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation.

According to Article 84(1) and (2) of the Articles, Ms. Chen Xiao
Ping and Mr. Yue Ming Wai Bonaventure will retire as Directors by
rotation, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The biographical details of the Directors and the Senior

Management are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 47 to 52 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save for the continuing connected transactions disclosed on pages
29 to 31 and related party transactions disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report, no Director
nor a connected entity of a Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party
during the Reporting Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than Directors’ service contracts and employment contracts
with the Group's senior management in full-time employment,
no management contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Group were entered into or existed during the Reporting
Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the contracts disclosed under the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below, no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its holding company
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interests, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the
end of the Reporting Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, the Directors, among others, shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may
incur or sustain by or about the execution of their duty in their
offices or in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance
coverage for the Directors against liabilities to third parties that
may be incurred in the course of performing their duties as at the
date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), which had been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in
which they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in the Rules of Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

The Company/

EEBHE

EERETETRAERARQAHEMAE
BOEEORD HERORESPHE
BmRRE

M2020F3A31H EFERARRETETHAERAR
AElEAEEE (FER (FHERBEEN) ([#
S REEMRAG ) FEXVIB) MARH - BERG kEHH
HERBEELSLHEEHEXVIET NN IR TE
MR AR RO R AR (BIEREES
MEAEIEDIEBEX SR G ANEEREENER X
KA ) RSN AQRIREES R EEF E352
BAGEMZLMANER AR  REHNES
BARXSMARARFES EMARA (TEHHRA]) 2
(EMBTAEZETELFISMIZESTR]) ([
SPEI ) BTMEeRAR R aES AR T

Approximate

name of associated Number of  percentage of
Name of Director corporation Capacity/nature of interest shares (Note 1) shareholding
YN Pl RGHHE B RFIR
EEgE =B E R 51 REEME (PiF&ET) Aot
Mr. Chan Shou Ming (Note 2)  The Company Interest of corporation 662,500,000 (L) 66.25%
controlled by the director
BRESREE (MEE2) ZAN/NS R ESFEHEEE R E R
Ms. Chen Xiao Ping (Note 3)  The Company Interest of corporation 22,500,000(L) 2.25%
controlled by the director
PREE 2o (M9EE3) A/NC] MNEZEEEHIREB R ER
Ms. Qian Chunlin (Note 4) The Company Interest of corporation 15,000,000(L) 1.50%

controlled by the director

BAEMZ T (HFE4) ZAN/NS
Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the shares

and underlying shares of the Company or the relevant associated
corporation.

2. Agile Valley Limited is 100% owned by Mr. Chan Shou Ming and
he is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Agile Valley
Limited under the SFO.
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3. Bright Firewood Limited is 100% owned by Ms. Chen Xiao Ping
and she is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Bright
Firewood Limited under the SFO.

4. Vast Exquisite Limited is 100% owned by Ms. Qian Chunlin and she
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Vast Ecquisite
Limited under the SFO.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executive had any interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register that was required to be
kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

At no time was the Company, or any of its holding companies or
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable any Director
and chief executive of the Company (including their spouses
and children under 18 years of age) to hold any interest or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2020, so far as is known to any director or chief
executive of the Company, the interests or short positions of the
persons, other than Directors or chief executive of the Company,
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Name of shareholder

Capacity/nature of interest

3. BHARAFGRBTLTREES  HREEER
B GD] - R AR B E AR A AR A N A R
A -

4 ERARAAMBEMLTRERE  HREBEAR
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B X EE SN H20203 8310 iEEE
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SERIRIEREH KBS KRAIE 3528 B BN E LM
RSARIRIZZE ST B BT A& AR &) K B A2 AT ) 4
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MR E °
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B (BRREFRBERH+N\RTFR) JEFSARA
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Pctn Sk AR R AR S E S O R e SOK B ©
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BT AL (BEERARBEBITRABRIN R
RABRD RABBRO P HELER R AFIREES
N EE DI ZE33616 BT ENERRMAMNERSRE
R

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number and
shares (Note 1)

RREHE 51 Rty ROEE (K1) BAFRBE D
Agile Valley Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 662,500,000 (L) 66.25%
BHARAF] E=EAA (MFE2)

Notes: iz

1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the shares 1. FH (L] RRZATRAR G AR EERD &

and underlying shares of the Company or the relevant associated
corporation.

2. These shares were held by Agile Valley Limited. The entire issued
shares of Agile Valley Limited are owned by Mr. Chan Shou Ming.
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, no person had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was recorded in the register required
to be kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant to
the resolution passed on 25 January 2019 to give the eligible
persons (as mentioned in the following paragraph) an opportunity
to have a personal stake in our Company and help motivate them
to optimise their future performance and efficiency to our Group
and/or to reward them for their past contributions, to attract and
retain or otherwise maintain on-going relationships with such
eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of
our Group, and additionally in the case of executives, to enable
our Group to attract and retain individuals with experience and
ability and/or to reward them for their past contributions.

Eligible participants of the share option scheme include (a) any
executive director of, manager of, or other employee holding
an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in any
member of our Group, any full-time or part-time employee, or
a person for the time being seconded to work full-time or part-
time for any member of our Group; (b) a director or proposed
director (including an independent non-executive director) of any
member of our Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of any
member of our Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any
member of our Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business or joint
venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of our Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any member of
our Group; (g) an associate of any of the persons referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (c) above; and (h) any person involved in the
business affairs of the Company whom the Board determines to
be appropriate to participate in the share option scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Schemes and any other schemes by the
Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the Listing Date unless shareholders’
approval has been obtained.

The maximum number of shares issuable under the share options
to each eligible persons in the Schemes within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, or to any of their associate, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the securities at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders” approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Directors, and may commence from the date
of the offer of the share options and ends on a date which is not
later than 28 days from the date of the offer of the share options
or the expiry dates of the Schemes, if earlier. The exercise price of
the options is determined by the board of Directors in its absolute
discretion and shall not be less than whichever is the highest of:

(a) the nominal value of a share;

(b)  the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
dally quotations sheets on the offer date; and

(c) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediate preceding the offer date.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from 15 February 2019, after which no further options
will be granted or offered.

No share option has been granted since the effective date of the
share option scheme and there are no outstanding share options
as at 31 March 2020.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
100,000,000 shares, which represented 10% of the Company’s
issued share capital, and the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme was about 8 years and 8 months.
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Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporations”,
“Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company” and “Share Option
Schemes” above, at no time during the Reporting Year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective associates nor was the Company and any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or
their respective associates to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group leased three premises from various
corporations which are 100% owned by Mr. Chan Shou Ming,
one of the controlling shareholders and an executive Director of
the Company. These leased premises are used by the Group as
restaurant, warehouse or car-parking spaces (the “Connected
Leases”) and the details are set out below:
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Approximate

gross floor Monthly
Landlord Tenant Location area rental Term Usage
Ex HE B BHEREEE AW HH# Rz
(sq.m.) (HK$)
(F7K) (%)

1. Able Cheer Barry Investments Shop No. R1, 3/F Kings 1,497 750,000 1 August 2016 to Operation of
Development Limited Wing Plaza 2, 1 On 31 July 2019 Shek Mun
Limited Kwan Street, Sha 785,000 1 August 2019 to Restaurant

Tin, New Territories 31 July 2020
1. BHBERERAR  AHREERAF HADALREERRG 1,497 750,000 2016F8H1RE KEAPIER

ES2H31ER15 M

2019 7A31H
785,000 2019%8H1HZE
202097A31H
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EEBHRE
Approximate
gross floor  Monthly
Landlord Tenant Location area rental Term Usage
#x #HE R BOBREER A HHE 23S
(sq.m.) (HKS$)
(SEFXK) (%)

2. Able Cheer Barry Investments P2, P3, P4 parking n/a 9,000 1 September 2018 Car-parking
Development Limited spaces, Kings Wing to 31 August spaces
Limited Plaza 2, 1 On Kwan 2019

Street, Sha Tin, New 1 September
Territories 2019 to 31
August 2020
2. BUERARRAR BANREERLF MADBLEE RN TEA 9,000 201859A1HZE SAENL
[E35283P2 - P3 - P4 20198 A31H
SAEL 20199A1H
£2020%F8H
31H
3. Art Ocean Limited Barry Investments Shop 310, 3/F, Kings 92 54,000 1 June 2017 to 31 Warehouse
Limited Wing Plaza 2, 1 On May 2019
Kwan Street, Sha 1 June 2019 to
Tin, New Territories 31 March
2021
3. BWERRAE AAREARRAR #ADHLEE IR 92 54,000 20176 A1HE EE
528031231057 4 2019%5A31H
2019F6A1H
F20214%F3A
31H
Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions TERRFEBRERS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the proposed annual caps for the
maximum amount of rental payable under the Connected Leases
are HK$14.1 million, HK$10.0 million and HK$10.2 million for
the years ending 31 March 2019, 2020 and 2021 respectively.
The total rent paid/payable for the Connected Leases for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and 2020 are HK$13.9 million and HK$9.9
million respectively.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions during the year under review
and have confirmed that these continuing connected transactions
were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Report of the Directors

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (“SHINEWING"), the Company’s
external auditor, was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions during the year ended 31 March 2020
and issued their unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
during the year under review by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save for the aforementioned continuing connected transactions
disclosed in this annual report, the related party transactions
disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements are
either exempted continuing connected transactions or connected
transactions which have complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

None of the controlling shareholders or the Directors of the
Company and their respective associates is interested in a business
apart from the Group’s business which competes or is likely to
compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business during
the Reporting Year.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-
COMPETITION

The Company has received the written confirmations from
Mr. Chan Shou Ming and Agile Valley Limited (collectively, the
"Covenantors” and each a “"Covenantor”), in respect of the
compliance with the undertakings in the deed of non-competition
("Deed of Non-competition”), entered into between the
Covenantors and the Company on 25 January 2019, during the
Reporting Year up to the date of this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with
the Deed of Non-competition and the Deed of Non-competition
has been enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms
during the Reporting Year up to the date of this annual report.
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SEBHE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors are
satisfied that the Company has maintained the prescribed
minimum public float of at least 25% of the Company's issued
shares under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules as at the date of this
annual report.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as
at 31 March 2020 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The details of the Company's corporate governance practices are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 34 to 46 of this annual report.

CHANGE OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

The Company and Shenwan Hongyuan Capital (H.K.) Limited
("“SWHY") had mutually agreed to terminate the compliance
adviser agreement dated 11 February 2019 with effect from 1
September 2019 due to the change of SWHY's handling officer.
Soochow Securities International Capital Limited (formerly known
as China Investment Securities International Capital Limited)
(“Soochow Securities”) had been appointed as the replacement
compliance adviser to the Company as required pursuant to Rule
3A.27 of the Listing Rules. The engagement of Soochow Securities
will take effect from 1 September 2019 until the date, pursuant to
Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules, on which the Company complies
with Rule 13.46 of the Listing Rules in respect of the Company’s
financial results for the first full financial year commencing after
the date of the initial listing of the Company, being the financial
year ending 31 March 2020, or until the compliance adviser
agreement entered into between the Company and Soochow
Securities is terminated in accordance with its terms, whichever is
earlier.
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Report of the Directors

INTEREST OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Neither Soochow Securities, the then compliance adviser of the
Group for the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2019, nor
its directors, employees or associates had any interests in relation
to the Company as at 31 March 2020.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report, the Board is not aware of
any significant event requiring disclosure that has taken place
subsequent to 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee assists the Board in providing an
independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management systems of the
Group, overseeing the audit process and performing other duties
and responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board from time
to time. The annual results of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2020 had been reviewed by the Audit Committee,
which consists of three independent non-executive Directors of
the Company, namely Mr Ng Kwok Tung, Mr. Chan Koon Yuen
Windaus and Mr. Yue Ming Wai Bonaventure, with Mr. Ng Kwok
Tung as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

AUDITOR

SHINEWING has been reappointed by the Directors as auditor
of the Company on 20 September 2019. SHINEWING will retire,
and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM"). A resolution for its
reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed. The
financial statements have been audited by SHINEWING.

On BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chan Shou Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 June 2020
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The Board believes that the sound corporate governance is
essential for long-term success and continuing development
of the Group. Therefore, the Board is committed to maintain
good corporate standards and procedures, so as to enhance the
accountability system and transparency of the Group, safeguard
the interests of the shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with all the code provisions set
out in the CG Code during the Reporting Year.

The Company will continue to review and upgrade its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with CG code.

MODEL CODE OF SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct for securities transactions. The Company had made
specific enquiry with the Directors and all of the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with required standards as set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2020 and
up to the date of this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategies,
setting of performance targets, evaluating business performance,
monitoring and controlling the management performance
including designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement. The
Board is also responsible for ensuring sound and effective internal
control systems are maintained. Please refer to “Risk Management
and Internal Control” in this Corporate Governance Report for
further details.. The management is delegated with the authority
and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day management
and operations of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of: (i)
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Company’s Directors and senior
management; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’'s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring codes
of conduct and compliance manuals (if any) applicable to the
Company's employees and Directors; and (v) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board reviewed and monitored
the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and company secretary of the Company in compliance
with the CG Code and the Listing Rules. Further, the Board
reviewed and monitored the Group’s policies and practices, and
noted that the Group had complied with the relevant legal and
regulatory requirements in all material respects during the year
under review. Lastly, the Board has reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and the disclosure of this Corporate
Governance Report.

Attendance of each Director at the Board and committee meetings

Corporate Governance Report
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during the Reporting Year is summarized as follows: g
Training Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Courses Meeting v Committee v Committee v Committee v
Executive Directors: HITES: EHIERE E=ggRY BRZEEY  FWMEEgY  RERZEGv
Mr. Chan Shou Ming BRE#LE i, iv 6/7 N/ATE A N/ATE N/ATE A
Ms. Chen Xiao Ping Rt i, iv 777 N/ATE A N/ATE A N/ATE A
Ms. Qian Chunlin BEMLL i, iv 6/7 N/AE A N/ATE N/ATE
Independent non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
Mr. Chan Koon Yuen BREE L
Windaus iii, v 717 3/3 2/2 11
Mr. Ng Kwok Tung hEIRR &4 i, iv 717 3/3 212 1/1
Mr. Yue Ming Wai RS
Bonaventure 1iii, v 717 3/3 2/2 11

35

Annual Report 2020 &k



~ Corporate Governance Report

[PRERIKRS

Notes:
Attending seminars and/or conference and/or forum
ii. Attending courses organised by professional bodies

iii.  Attending courses organised by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

iv. Reading relevant materials

V. Number of meetings attended/number of meetings held

The Chairman held one meeting with all the independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of other executive
Directors to discuss of the Company's business during the year
under review.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board considered that it possesses balance of skills, various
experience, capabilities and expertise suitable for and relevant
to the Company's businesses for providing sound judgment
on strategic issues and effective supervising and guiding the
management. The Board includes experts in catering, food and
beverage area and professional in legal, accounting and finance.

In addition, the Board consisted of three independent non-
executive Directors during the Reporting Year, representing
more than one-third of the Board. As such, there is a strong
independent element in the Board to provide independent
judgment. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
given an annual confirmation of independence to the Company
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the date of this
annual report, the Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
relevant requirements under the Listing Rules.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
six Directors, including three executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The board members are
listed below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Shou Ming (Chairman)
Ms. Chen Xiao Ping (Chief executive officer)
Ms. Qian Chunlin
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Koon Yuen Windaus
Mr. Ng Kwok Tung
Mr. Yue Ming Wai Bonaventure

Biographical information of the directors is set forth on pages 47
to 50 of this annual report.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date, which is renewable upon expiry, subject to
compliance with the Listing Rules and termination in accordance
with the provisions of the service contract or by either party giving
the other not less than three months’ prior written notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial term of
three years from their respective dates of appointment which is
renewable upon expiry, subject to compliance with the Listing
Rules and termination in accordance with the provisions of the
service contract or by either party giving the other not less than
one month’ prior written notice.

According to Article 84 of the Company's articles of association
(the "Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. In
the upcoming annual general meeting, Ms. Chen Xiao Ping and
Mr. Yue Ming Wai Bonaventure would retire and be subject to re-
election.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
not to be performed by the same individual to avoid power being
concentrated in any one individual. The divisions of responsibilities
between the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Chan Shou Ming, and
the Chief Executive Officer, Ms. Chen Xiao Ping are clearly defined
and have been approved by the Board.

The Chairman leads the Board in the determination of its
strategy and in the achievement of its objectives. He is primarily
responsible for organising the business of the Board, ensuring its
effectiveness and setting its agenda.
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The Chief Executive Officer is directly in charge of the daily
operations of the Group and are accountable to the Board for the
financial and operational performance of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

The Group noticed the importance of continuing professional
development for the Directors. The Directors are always kept
updated on the changes of statutory, regulatory, market and
business environment of the Group. The Company will continuous
provide briefing and professional developments for Directors, if
necessary.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Directors are provided
with monthly management update reports to give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the performance, position, recent
development and prospects of the Group.

BOARD MEETINGS

Pursuant to Code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, Board meeting
should be held at least four times each year. During the Reporting
Year, the Board has convened seven board meetings.

All Directors will receive written notice at least 14 days prior to the
regular board meetings. For all other Board meetings, reasonable
notice will be given. The Directors can attend the meetings either
in person or through electronic means of communication in
accordance with the Articles. All minutes of the Board meetings
were properly recorded for Board’s consideration.

To facilitate discharging the duties of the Director, all Directors
can freely communicate with the management for enquiring and
obtaining further information if required. The Directors also have
unrestricted access to the Company secretary who is responsible
for facilitating and advising the Board/Committee procedures to
comply with regulatory and statutory requirements. Any Director,
should they wish, can seek independent professional advice at the
expense of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance practices,
the Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
on 25 January 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The terms of reference of the three committees are posted
to Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the
Company’s website at www.palace-rest.com.hk.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”),
during the Reporting Year, comprised three members who are all
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yue Ming Wai
Bonaventure, Mr. Chan Koon Yuen Windaus and Mr. Ng Kwok
Tung. Mr. Ng Kwok Tung is the chairman of the committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment and dismissal
of external auditors, to review financial statements and provide
advice in respect of our financial reports, internal control
procedure and risk management system of the Group, oversee the
audit process, develop and review our policy, and perform other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee has convened three meetings during the
Reporting Year with two meetings having been attended by
external auditors. The attendance record of each members of the
Audit Committee can be viewed from the table on page 35.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee had
reviewed i) the “Report to Those Charged with Governance”
prepared by the external auditor; ii) the Group’s annual results
and annual report for the year ended 31 March 2020; iii) the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk management;
iv) the continuing connected transactions of the Company; and v)
the terms of engagement and remuneration of external auditor
for its provision of audit and non-audit related services.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Board (“Remuneration
Committee”), during the Reporting Year, comprised three
members who are all independent non-executive Directors, being
Mr. Chan Koon Yuen Windaus, Mr. Ng Kwok Tung and Mr. Yue
Ming Wai Bonaventure. Mr. Chan Koon Yuen Windaus is the
chairman of the committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include: (i)
making recommendations to the Directors regarding the policy
and structure for the remuneration of all of the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policies; (ii)
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management; (iii) reviewing
and approving the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (iv)
considering and approving the grant of share options to eligible
participants pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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The Remuneration Committee has convened two meetings during
the Reporting Year.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
had reviewed and made recommendations on the remuneration
package of the Directors and the senior management.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments payable to Directors is determined by the Board
with reference to recommendations given by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board taking into account the Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group. A
summary of the Directors’ remuneration is set out in note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration payable to members of senior management (excluding
the Directors) by band for the year ended 31 March 2020 is set
out below:

Bands of remuneration ez FENl
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A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/% 7T
Details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals to be disclosed under Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules
are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statement of
this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Board (“Nomination
Committee”), during the Reporting Year, comprised three
members who are all independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Ng Kwok Tung, Mr. Chan Koon Yuen Windaus and Mr. Yue
Ming Wai Bonaventure. Mr. Yue Ming Wai Bonaventure being the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include to:
(i) review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the corporate’s strategy; (ii) identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the
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independence of independent non-executive Directors; and (iv)
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for directors,
in particular the Chairman and the President of the Company.

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy on 25
January 2019 (the “Board Diversity Policy”). The purpose of
the Board Diversity Policy is to set out the basic principles to
be followed to ensure that the Board has appropriate balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high
standards of corporate governance. Under the Board Diversity
Policy, the selection of Board candidates shall be based on a
range of diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s
business model and specific needs, including but not limited to,
gender, age cultural background, educational background, and
professional experience, which are the measurable objectives
for implementing the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination
Committee is also responsible for reviewing the Board Diversity
Policy, developing and reviewing measureable objectives for
implementing the policy and monitoring the progress on achieving
these measurable objectives. The review of the Board Diversity
Policy and the measureable objectives shall be carried out at least
annually to ensure the continued effectiveness of the Board. The
Nomination Committee has primary responsibility for identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board
and shall give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity
Policy in selection of Board candidates. Board nomination and
appointments will continue to be made on merit basis based on
the Group’s business needs from time to time with adequate
consideration of diversity of Board members.

The Nomination Committee has convened one meeting during the
Reporting Year.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed i) the board composition, size and structure, ii) the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and iii) the
appointment or re-appointment or succession of Directors. After
due consideration, the Nomination Committee has concluded that
based on the Company's existing business model and specific
needs, the current composition of the Board satisfies the Board
Diversity Policy for the year under review.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Chiu Hung Alex was appointed as the Company
Secretary on 28 June 2018. Please refer to the section headed
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report for his
biographical information.
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During the year under review, Mr. Chan Chiu Hung Alex has taken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

AUDITOR

During the year, the Group reapppointed SHINEWING as the
Group's external auditor and to hold office until the conclusion of
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. For the financial year
ended 31 March 2020, the total fee paid or payable in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided by SHINEWING and its
affiliate company are set out below:

REEFE  REEES 2D 5@/ 48
FEEESH

= EED

RER  REBERE kP MIETEINSZEGRD - T
BETEBRRBFRASLERIE - HE2020F3A31H
IETERFE - KPR R BB E A AR AR 8
IEZEREE B EBRBAINHT

Services rendered Amount
FriR AR TS &5
(HK$'000)
(F&mx)
Audit service ZE AR TS 1,150
Non-audit services: L BT -
Agreed upon procedure on the KEZE 20199 H308 LN E A M B AR EREFE
financial information for the six
month ended 30 September 2019 280
— Tax advisory and compliance service — BB ARE RS 120
— Turnover rent compliance service —EEFEHe AR 110

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors understand and acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the consolidated financial statements for each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. However, the above statement should be
read in conjunction with, but distinguished from, the independent
auditor’s report in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s
Report” which acknowledges the reporting responsibilities of the
Group’s auditor.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
therefore the Directors continue to adopt the going concern
approach in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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To further accountability, the announcement containing the full
year financial results are signed by the chairman of the Board, Mr.
Chan Shou Ming, for and on behalf of the Board to confirm that
it is to the best of the Board’s knowledge, nothing has come to
the attention of the Board which may render such results to be
false or misleading in any material respects. The Board approves
the financial results after review and authorizes the release of the
results on the websites of the Company (www.palace-rest.com.hk)
and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) to the public.

Statement of the Company’s external auditor’s responsibilities in
respect of the consolidated financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management systems (the “Systems”)
of the Group. The Systems are designed for safeguarding
the assets of the Group, assuring the proper maintenance of
accounting records and ensuring compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. It provides reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has established an internal audit function to
monitor and review the finance, operation, compliance and risk
management in compliance with the internal control manual and
relevant laws and regulations. The assessments will be presented
to the Board and the Audit Committee for their review and
assessments of the internal control system and risk management
of the Group.

To oversee obtaining restaurant license in compliance with certain
laws and regulations, the management has set up a restaurant
licensing compliance committee comprising Ms. Chen Xiao
Ping, our chief executive officer, Mr. Chan Chiu Hung Alex, our
company secretary and Mr. Tsoi Chi Yung, our restaurant licensing
compliance manager. During the Reporting Year and up to the
date of this annual report, the restaurant licensing compliance
committee has reviewed of obtaining and renewing the restaurant
licenses for new and/or existing restaurants of the Group and
assured the compliance results to the Board.
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During the Reporting Year, the Board has also engaged an
independent internal auditor to review the Systems of the Group.
The scope, the assessment results and the proposed improvement
recommendations were reported to the Audit Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's Systems and considered that the
Group’s Systems is effective and adequate. The Systems of the
Group will be constantly reviewed and optimized to coincide with
the strategy and development of the Group.

The Group admits its responsibilities under the provisions of Part
XIVA of SFO and the Listing Rules relating to the disclosure of
inside information to the public. Policies, procedures and internal
controls had been set up for handling and disseminating inside
information to ensure confidential and noticed to the public in a
timely manner.

The procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information are as follows:

1.  the Group conducts its affairs with comply with the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published
by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong;

2. the Group has restricted access to inside information;

3. the Group has established procedures to announce or
publish the inside information such as financial results. The
finance team are responsible for monitoring the changes
and developments in their respective areas of operation
and reporting any potential or suspected inside information
events to the Board. Based on the information obtained
from internal reporting, the Board assesses whether any of
the information constitutes inside information which needs
to be released to the public. Should public disclosure be
required, the Board will determine the scope and the timing
of disclosure. If and when appropriate, the Board may seek
independent professional advice to ensure that the Company
complies with the disclosure requirements. The Company
discloses information to the public generally and non-
exclusively through channels including websites of its own
and the Stock Exchange, with an aim to achieve fair and
timely disclosure of information; and

4.  the Group has established and implemented procedures
for communicating the third party. Only executive Directors
and designated person are authorised to communicate with
parties outside the Group.
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GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The annual general meeting (“"AGM") is the primary forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. At
the AGM, the Directors (including independent non-executive
directors) attend the meeting to answer the queries from the
shareholders and the external auditor of the Group is invited to
the AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Voting by Poll

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company
(other than on procedural and administrative matters) are taken
by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of voting by poll are
explained to the shareholders at the commencement of each
general meeting, and questions from shareholders regarding the
voting procedures are answered. Results of votings would be
declared at the meeting and published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to the articles 58 of the Articles of the Company,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general
meetings ("EGM"”). Any one or more shareholders holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for Shareholders’ Nomination of Directors

Pursuant to the articles 85 of the Articles and the “Procedures
for Shareholder to propose a person for election as a director”
published by the Company on the Company’'s website, any
Shareholder may lodge a notice in writing (the “Notice”) to
nominate a person for election as a director of the Company
at the Company’s head office or the Company’s branch share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.
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The period for lodgment of the Notice shall commence on the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders’ Other Proposals and Enquiries

Shareholders may lodge other proposals at a general meeting in
writing and forward the same to the Company’s head office.

For other enquires, shareholders may send their written enquires
or requests to the Company’s head office, or by fax to (852)2834
8012, or by email to cfo@palacewedding.hk. The Company
Secretary shall forward shareholders’ enquiries and concerns to the
Board and/or relevant Board committees of the Company, where
appropriate, in order for the Board to respond to such enquires.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To ensure transparent and comprehensive disclosures to investors,
the Group delivers information of the Group to the public
through various communication platforms, namely general
meeting, Company's website (http://www.palace-rest.com.hk),
announcements and financial reports. Investors are encouraged to
share their views or enquiries to the Company in writing to the
Company’s head office, or by fax to (852)2834 8012, or by email
to cfo@palacewedding.hk.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS
During the Reporting Year and up to the date of this report, there

was no significant changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Shou Ming

Mr. Chan Shou Ming ("Mr. Chan”) (formerly known as Chan
Wai Keung), aged 62, founded the Group in July 2006 and
was appointed as the Chairman and executive Director of the
Company in June 2018. He is also the controlling shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Chan is responsible for building and managing
the brand image and overseeing the overall operations of our
Group. He is also responsible for new business development and
strategic planning of the Group.

Mr. Chan has close to 30 years of experience in the catering
industry and is specialised in providing banquet services to the
customers. Currently, he is the president of Hong Kong Federation
of Restaurants & Related Trades, honorary director of Federation
of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organisation, director/vice-
chairman of Pok Oi Hospital and honor chairman of World Master
Chefs Association for Cantonese.

Ms. Chen Xiao Ping

Ms. Chen Xiao Ping (“Ms. Chen”) (formerly known as Chen
Shu Ping), aged 46, joined the Group in July 2006 as the chief
executive officer and was appointed as the executive Director of
the Company in June 2018. Ms. Chen is responsible for the brand
image building and promoting, overseeing overall operations and
procurement management of our Group.

Ms. Chen has over 20 years of experience in catering industry.
Ms. Chen is a director and vice-president of The Association for
Hong Kong Catering Services Management Ltd., the vice-president
of Hong Kong Small and Medium Enterprises Association and a
member of The 10th Committee of Institution of Dining Art.

Ms. Chen obtained her bachelor of business administration with
honors from the Asia Open University (Macau), Macau, in 2007.
Ms. Chen obtained a professional diploma in Chinese Catering
Management from Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education
(Chai Wan) and professional certificate restaurant management
from the Tao Miao Institute Hong Kong, in 2012.

Ms. Qian Chunlin

Ms. Qian Chunlin ("Ms. Qian”), aged 55, joined the Group
in May 2010 as the banquet director and was appointed as the
executive Director of the Company in June 2018. Ms. Qian is
responsible for banquet marketing and overseeing front-line
operation of our Group.
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SEREREEE

Ms. Qian has over eight years of experience in restaurant services
and is specialised in providing banquet services to the customers.
Ms. Qian obtained her module certificate in customer service
(level 2) from Hong Kong Federation of Restaurants & Related
Trades Charitable Foundation Limited in 2012 and her certificate
in banquet planner and Emcee (QF Level 2) from Hong Kong M.C.
Association Limited in 2017.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Koon Yuen Windaus

Mr. Chan Koon Yuen Windaus (“Mr. Chan"), aged 49,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
our Company in January 2019. He is also the chairman of
Remuneration Committee and a member of each Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee.

Mr. Chan has over 22 years of experience in the legal industry as
a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong. He has an extensive experience
in merger and acquisition transactions and corporate finance.

In August 2006, Mr. Chan set up the firm Messrs. Keith Lam Lau
& Chan, Solicitors and Notaries (BI#k[R#ZRI7T) as one of the
founding partners and remains as a partner in the firm.

Mr. Chan obtained from The City University of Hong Kong (formerly
known as City Polytechnic of Hong Kong) his bachelor degree of
laws in November 1993 and his postgraduate certificate in July
1994. He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in October
1996 (now practising), and a solicitor in England and Wales in
March 2003 (now non-practising). Mr. Chan was also admitted as
a Certified Management Accountant (a member of The Institute of
Certified Management Accountants, Australia) in November 2017,
a fellow of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in July 2009, a
Registered Financial Planner (a member of Society of Registered
Financial Planners in July 2008) and a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors in October 2006.

Mr. Ng Kwok Tung

Mr. Ng Kwok Tung (“Mr. Ng”), aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company in January
2019. He is also the chairman of Audit Committee and a member
of each Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
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Mr. Ng has over 41 years of experience in financial management
and accounting.

In September 1977, Mr. Ng founded the accounting firm Tony
Kwok Tung Ng & Co. and is currently a partner in the firm.

Since November 1993, Mr. Ng has been serving Fountain Set
(Holdings) Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (the "Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 420), and is
currently an independent non-executive director of the company.
Mr. Ng served as an independent non-executive director of Wah
Ha Realty Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 278) from 2001 to 2004 and has been
subsequently redesignated as a non-executive director of the
company since 2004.

In addition, Mr. Ng obtained from McGill University, Canada,
his bachelor of commerce degree in June 1973 a licentiate in
accountancy in June 1975. Mr. Ng also obtained his diploma in
Chinese law from the University of East Asia, Macao, in October
1989. Mr. Ng was admitted as an associate of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants (currently known as HKICPA) in August
1976, a member of the Institute Of Chartered Accountants of
British Columbia (currently known as the Chartered Professional
Accountants of British Columbia) in March 1979, a member of
the Order of Chartered Accountants of Quebec (currently known
as the Order of Chartered Professional Accountants of Quebec) in
January 1975, a member of The Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants (currently known as the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada) in January 1975, associate of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong in September 1987, a member of The
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors in August 2000
and a member of the Society of Registered Financial Planners in
September 2002.

Mr. Yue Ming Wai Bonaventure

Mr. Yue Ming Wai Bonaventure (“Mr. Yue”), aged 52 was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company in January 2019. He is also the chairman of Nomination
Committee and a member of each Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee.

Directors and Senior Management
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Directors and Senior Management

SEREREEE

Mr. Yue is serving as the chief financial officer and corporate
secretary and the executive director at Feishang Anthracite
Resources Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1738). Mr. Yue was the financial controller of China
Natural Resources Inc. (“CHNR") a company whose shares are
listed on the National Association of Securities Dealers Automated
Quotations from 2008 to 2014 and has been appointed as the
chief financial officer and the corporate secretary of CHNR since
April 2015. He has been appointed as an executive director of
CHNR since August 2016. He has been an independent non-
executive director of A.Plus Group Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1841) since March
2016. Mr. Yue has over 27 years of experience in accounting,
audit, finance and compliance for various industries gained in
an international certified public accountant firm, an investment
advisory firm, and listed companies in both Hong Kong and New
York State. Mr. Yue graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University
with a bachelor of business administration degree in 1990 and
was awarded a master of science degree in accounting and
finance from the University of Manchester in 1994. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. Mr.
Yue is also a member of Chartered Accountants Australia & New
Zealand and a member certified in entity and intangible valuations
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Save as
disclosed above, he did not hold any directorship in other listed
public companies in the past three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Lam Ho Wing

Mr. Lam Ho Wing (“Mr. Lam”), aged 36, joined the Group
in January 2019 and was appointed as the head chef of our
Company in June 2020. He is responsible for developing new
dishes and supervising the food quality of the Group.

Mr. Lam has over 18 years of experience in cooking and food
serving. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Lam worked as kitchen
chef or assistant chef at various restaurants.
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Mr. Yu Kim Hung

Mr. Yu Kim Hung ("Mr. Yu"), aged 52, joined the Group in July
2019 and was appointed as the head of dim sum division of the
Company in June 2020. He is responsible for developing new
types of dim sum and supervising the dim sum quality of our
Group.

Mr. Yu has over 14 years of experience in cooking and food
serving. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Yu worked as head or
assistant manager of dim sum division at various restaurants.
Mr. Yu was awarded with several prizes by Eating Establishment
Employees General Union.

Mr. Tsoi Chi Yung

Mr. Tsoi Chi Yung (“Mr. Tsoi"”), aged 45, joined the Group in
September 2014. He is currently the training manager of banquet
services of the Group and a district manager. He is responsible for
providing training of banquet services to our staff. Mr. Tsoi is also
the restaurant licensing compliance manager and a member of the
restaurant licensing compliance committee of the Group, mainly
responsible for supervising on all licensing compliance matters
and ensuring all of our restaurants are in compliance of licensing
requirements.

Mr. Tsoi has over 10 years of experience in banquet services
industry. Mr. Tsoi joined our Group as the branch manager of The
One (The Palace) Restaurant and was subsequently promoted to as
the district manager and training manager.

Mr. Tsoi obtained his foundation certificate in food hygiene from
the Chartered Institute of Environmental Health in 2005 and a
proof of completion entitled basic food hygiene certificate for
hygiene managers from the School of Continuing and Professional
Education, City University of Hong Kong, Hong Kong, in 2005.

Directors and Senior Management
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Chiu Hung Alex

Mr. Chan Chiu Hung Alex ("Mr. Chan”), aged 54, was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company in June
2018.

Mr. Chan has over 18 years of experience in managing companies
listed in Hong Kong or overseas. He obtained his bachelor of
business administration (honours) degree in finance from the
Hong Kong Baptist University in 1990, and an advance diploma in
specialist taxation from the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in 2012. Mr. Chan is currently a fellow member of
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries,
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BB RS

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F, Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

ferkPFa
Shinei ng

TO THE MEMBERS OF PALACE BANQUET HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Palace
Banquet Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 59 to 139, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Refer to notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 79, 84 and 85.

The key audit matter
BEETTEE

BRENSEE
RREASAEREBRMANERAE  HARREY
BHRENBARSEZNEH SLFHEEERMEF
AERBGAVBRRAREARAREEN - RATE
HELFHREHEFNER -

M- BERREUAREAEEERE

2R A ERRM T 16 R17ARETIE - £84
K585 H W2 5T BUR °

mf 3

\

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMMETNMEERARETSEE

We identified the impairment of property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$79,947,000 and right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$433,616,000 as a key audit matter because
this involves a significant judgement in the estimation of the
recoverable amounts of the property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets and the amounts are significant to the
consolidated financial statements.

R HANEYE  BE KRR EL79,947,00058 T M EREEEL
433,616,000/ 8 TR RE ABEHRETEE - AAEL Y RE T -
BB MEEA R EREEEN T RESREELERAE  MtEaHd
B EMBHREZEEE -

Our audit procedures were designed to evaluate
the management’s assessment of the indicators
of impairment and, where such indicators
were identified, assessed the reasonableness of
management’s impairment testing and identify any
valuation risk of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets.

BAMFER A EEEBERED RO E R
(HBEREATR) THEEBAREIRNSGE ML
KBRIE - BB KR IA K& REEENEREE
[z

We have discussed with the management on the key

assumptions used in the management’s impairment
assessment.

BMEEERENmEMENEMANERRR -
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The key audit matter
BEETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWET A EEERETER

It involves a significant degree of judgement by the management
in assessing whether there are any indicators of impairment for
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets at the end
of the reporting period. The determination of the recoverable
amount for property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets involves the use of assumptions and estimations including
estimated revenue growth rate, operating costs and discount rate.

EEEFRENEDE BEIRBAREREEENRSHARES
BEMBETREELERHE - EEYE  BE LRENREHRE
BENAKRESER S REBBREZ LG ERATRRERE &
BN BEIRE o

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

We have assessed the reasonableness of key
assumptions used in the impairment, including the
estimated revenue growth rate, operating costs and
discount rate.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
18 N7 1% BX B ¥R 25
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We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Lau Kai Wong.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lau Kai Wong

Practising Certificate Number: P06623

Hong Kong
26 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mOEnREMEEKZE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 #Z%202063HA31H IEFE

NOTES 2020 2019
B 5E 20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Revenue Weas 8 650,801 848,567
Other income HAtb g A 8 13,037 8,427
Other (losses) gain, net Eib (E1E) W F5E 9 (40,274) 579
Cost of inventories consumed FTiERFERA (152,000) (201,321)
Staff costs B TR (232,190) (260,196)
Property rentals and related expenses VXS FAABRY (66,811) (191,167)
Utilities expenses N FEER 2 (40,698) (45,461)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - B RESEITE
equipment (34,279) (25,523)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE (118,598) -
Other expenses B (62,593) (60,757)
Finance costs SR AN 11 (22,733) (5,103)
Listing expenses il Fa - (17,342)
(Loss) profit before tax BrFian (B8 ) & A (106,338) 50,703
Income tax expenses FriS i sz 12 (6,033) (12,954)
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive KRARHE AERFR
(expenses) income for the year (E518) %A M 2|
attributable to owners of the Company (X)) Wz=mess 13 (112,371) 37,749
(Loss) earnings per share Bk (EE) &7
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EARREE (BL) 15 (11.2) 4.8
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AS AT 31 MARCH 2020 7202053 H31H

NOTES 2020 2019
B 20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment E RS 16 79,947 85,433
Right-of-use assets ERERE 17 433,616 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of WHEMZ - BB MR i@
property, plant and equipment AR & - 322
Deposit placed for a life insurance SEASRERE
policy 18 15,217 15,079
Rental deposits Heke 52,850 44,151
Deferred tax assets RIEFHIBE = 20 595 5,163
582,225 150,148
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 21 5,648 3,308
Trade and other receivables B 5 M E A fE W GRIE 19 30,476 41,176
Tax recoverable A] Yz [B] 7 I8 8,533 2,368
Time deposit with maturity over three FEAREA=EA R
months TEHATF R 22 20,000 =
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRIRS 23 119,012 242,560
183,669 289,412
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERFRIE 24(a) 16,866 50,285
Contract liabilities EHEE 24(b) 51,826 39,909
Bank borrowings RITEK 25 44,786 57,307
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 123,802 =
Tax payables JERTARIE - 8,301
Provision for reinstatement costs B A 26 1,258 2,620
238,538 158,422
Net current (liabilities) assets B (BB EERE (54,869) 130,990
527,356 281,138
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position A

eI R

AS AT 31 MARCH 2020 7202053 HA31H

NOTES 2020 2019
B 5E 20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 376,982 =
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 20 352 288
Other payables H b T E0I8 24(a) 3,023 22,088
Contract liabilities AHaE 24(b) 455 2,414
Provision for reinstatement costs 1BEK A B 26 8,245 5,678
389,057 30,468
138,299 250,670

Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital &4 27 10,000 10,000
Reserves G 128,299 240,670

Equity attributable to owners of the RAFHEE AEIEER

Company 138,299 250,670

The consolidated financial statements on page 59 to 139 were Z59B £ % 139HMARA KRR AES 20204
approved and authorised for issued by the board of directors on 6826 H L& MIRETIZER AU TALTRAEES
26 June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chan Shou Ming Chen Xiao Ping
PR 8 PR B2
Director Director

= EF
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~ Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GOERENE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 #Z%202053H31H [EFE

Share Retained
Share capital premium Other reserve profits Total
[N IR 13 EE Hitbf#E REBEF @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET FHT T
(Note)
(Bt=E)
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4H1H 19,010 - (801) 91,734 109,943
Profit and total comprehensive Rl &% 2 E
income for the year gt k) = = = 37,749 37,749
Dividend recognised as ERR AN KK
distribution (Note 14) RS (FizE14) - - - (14,000) (14,000)
Share issued BT 1,000 = = = 1,000
Elimination of share capital on iS5 @B EHE
group reorganisation [N (20,010) - 20,010 = =
Capitalisation issue BT 7,500 (7,500) = = =
Share issued in connection B IREERER
with the global offering WD 1T 2,500 122,500 = - 125,000
Deemed contribution by a WA BRI R A
controlling shareholder HE - - 5,261 - 5,261
Transaction costs attributable  SRBR 2 IREEH
to the global offering R A - (14,283) = = (14,283)
At 31 March 2019 and 20193 H318 &
1 April 2019 201948 1H 10,000 100,717 24,470 115,483 250,670
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREE&KEH
expenses for the year k] - - - (112,371) (112,371)
At 31 March 2020 $2020%F3A31H 10,000 100,717 24,470 3,112 138,299

Note: Other reserves represented (i) the difference between the aggregate iz : EMfEEE2FE)A R AKEHBARMNEREITRER

amount of issued and fully paid share capital of the subsidiaries ERABFEERN B ARRHE A2 IHRE (ER
acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of the shares SEEMAN—BH) MBETHROEEBEZFHHERE
issued by the Company in exchange for the entire equity interests (ii) 50 i — PRI Bf /B 1 B O AR (B ERAE AR A B AR AR R Uk
in the subsidiaries as part of the group reorganisation, (ii) the BAHBARMNATE 2 HMNERE: KB EMHAX
difference between the consideration for the acquisition of a EAEWHAARAZERRRAENRELE - RZER
subsidiary and the fair value of the subsidiary acquired from the R —REERERBNERET ZEEELOR
common shareholder of the Company and (iii) deemed contribution %o

arising from the listing expenses borne by the controlling
shareholder of the Company and waiver of the need to reinstate the
premises for a restaurant rented from the controlling shareholder
upon end of the lease term.

Palace Banquet Holdings Limited & 3245 A% AR A 7 62



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

|||'.ﬁ [ IQEE

MER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 #Z%202063HA31H IEFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
(Loss) profit before tax BrAiAT (/518 ) & A (106,338) 50,703
Adjustments for: FHEIEA
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 118,598 =
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W BB RFETE 34,279 25,523
Impairment loss on right-of-use asset A E 2 RERE 27,729 =
Impairment loss on property, plant and M - BB R RE
equipment & 12,545 758
Interest on lease liabilities HEEENE 20,985 =
Concession of reinstatement cost BB AN B, (361) =
Imputed interest on rental deposits on initial R RN RS
recognition BEE - 2,793
Premium and handling charges on a life ABSRENRERFTEE
insurance policy 221 220
Interest on bank borrowings RITE T & 1,625 2,142
Unwinding of discounting on provision for 1E1E A A B {E B3R #E D]
reinstatement costs 123 168
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  HE REERE
equipment - (1,337)
Bank interest income RITHALEUA (1,362) (46)
Imputed interest income on non-current rental FERNHAME RSB EFE
deposits PN (1,246) (1,279)
Interest income from deposit placed for a life KBASRERENF S
insurance policy WA (543) (530)
Operating cash flows before movements in LEECFHRNLERS
working capital meE 106,255 79,115
Increase in inventories FEEM (2,340) (881)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B 5 & E A e URGRIB R
receivables ($Z5n) 568 (6,589)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other B REMBENFIE (D)
payables Pl (32,897) 4,546
Decrease in provision for reinstatement costs BB R AN BE R (766) =
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities ABHEEEM ORd) 9,958 (3,470)
Cash generated from operations KEESEENRE 80,778 72,721
Income taxes paid BFEH (15,920) (11,076)
Income taxes refunded PSR g 53 3,136
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETDRERES TR 64,911 64,781

63
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

|||T [ IEQUILE?_‘E(

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 #Z%202053H31H [EFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZH
Interest received B U B 1,026 46
Purchase of property, plant and equipment UREE Y2 ~ IR & iR (43,706) (34,954)
Proceed on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - ME KERAERS
equipment RIE - 2,026
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant WM - BB REREEN
and equipment e - (164)
Placement of time deposit with maturity over FAZHI R A E = (& A &9
three months EHIER (60,000) =
Withdrawal of time deposit with maturity over TRENEHA B 4B iE = 1B A &9
three months TEHATF R 40,000 =
Repayments from shareholders B BRREK - 302
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REETEHFMARESFE (62,680) (32,744)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
Repayment for principal elements of lease BEHEAENAEES
liabilities (90,832) -
Repayment for interest elements of lease BEESAENNEIS
liabilities (20,985) -
Dividends paid B A - (14,000)
Repayments of borrowings EEER (12,521) (11,027)
New borrowings raised EBFER - 10,000
Interest paid EATFE (1,625) (2,142)
Proceeds from issue of shares of a subsidiary BT —HERB ARG AE
KIE - 1,000
Proceeds from issue of shares BT FTSFA - 125,000
Listing expense paid, net B EmFEZ R - (7,459)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING METEH (FTA) AEREFEH
ACTIVITIES (125,963) 101,372
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND RERRSEEY (R ) &
CASH EQUIVALENTS R (123,732) 133,409
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FHNRERRELEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 242,560 109,151
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes R FFH B 184 =
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FRESRESEEY (BRTT
END OF THE YEAR, represented by bank HEHREAE)
balances and cash 119,012 242,560

Palace Banquet Holdings Limited &% ARA O«
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
7 June 2018 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the laws of Cayman Islands and its shares have been
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 15 February 2019. The name of the
Company was changed from First Gain Holdings Company
Limited to The Palace Holdings Limited on 29 June 2018
and further changed to Palace Banquet Holdings Limited on
16 October 2018. The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the Company’s information section to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in Chinese restaurant
operation in Hong Kong (the “Listing Business”).

Prior to the listing, the Company was held by Agile Valley
Limited, Bright Firewood Limited and Vast Exquisite Limited
which are directly owned by three shareholders, namely Mr.
Chan Shou Ming (“Mr. Chan”), Ms. Chen Xiao Ping (“Ms.
Chen”) and Ms. Qian Chunlin (“Ms. Qian”) respectively
(together, the “Ultimate Shareholders”). Amongst
the Ultimate Shareholders, Mr. Chan is regarded as the
controlling shareholder of the Group (the “Controlling
Shareholder”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as
the “Group”).

Basis of preparation and presentation

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared
based on the accounting policies set out in Note 3 which
conform with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").

o 8 B S R B 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

—RER

ARARR2018F6 A7THEREHERERS
HEZEFMKLAEREER AR RER
HE2019F2 A15BERNEBHERFMER
AE]ERET > 7R2018F6H298 * KR FAY
B A EEERRA R AR (First Gain Holdings
Company Limited)2i A & EZER B R A G (The
Palace Holdings Limited) ' B3 —21K2018410
H16HM A BB GR AR (Palace Banquet
Holdings Limited) e "R &)kt R R E £
S B R HBUE R G R AN A R AR — B4R ER

RRABR/—RREERRQR  EMB AR T 21
ENBRLLHRVERE (LK) -

EWAE ARRBEBHEERAR RHFEARA
AIREREAERARFE  MRFRADAIE=
ZRCR (RERESEE (TREE]) REFX
T ([BR&x)) REEHLL (T8x+]) (&
WA ITRERR]) )BEERA REKBRRE
o BREARAR SRR BROERBCR (MR
Rl

REMBmRIAET ([BR]) 25 AT
RARBREMBRR (SH [AKEE]) 2T

REEH -
AR 2R

REMBMR BB IIMATEEE S
NE ([BREHEAE]) IRGEEYBRE
R ([ERUBHREER]) VS HRRER -
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~ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i 0 B S R i 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

GENERAL (Continued)
Basis of preparation and presentation (Continued)

Prior to the reorganisation and during the year ended 31
March 2019, management of the Listing Business directed
the economic activities of the Listing Business as a single
business through the operating subsidiaries which were held
by the Ultimate Shareholders. As part of the reorganisation,
investment holding companies and the Company were
incorporated and interspersed between the operating
subsidiaries and the Ultimate Shareholders. Since then the
Company became the holding company of the Group on
28 June 2018. The companies now comprising the Group
have been under the control of the Controlling Shareholder
throughout the year ended 31 March 2019 or since their
respective dates of incorporation or establishment up to 31
March 2019, where this is a shorter period. As there was
no change in the Controlling Shareholder, and the Group
comprising the Company and its subsidiaries was directly
and beneficially owned by the same Ultimate Shareholders
before and after the reorganisation, the Group comprising
the Company and its subsidiaries is regarded as a continuing
entity. As the reorganisation only involved inserting new
holding companies and has not resulted in any changes
in management and economic substance to the Listing
Business, the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019 has been presented as a continuation
of the existing company as if the reorganisation has been
completed at the beginning of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has net current liabilities
of approximately HK$54,869,000 and incurred a net loss of
approximately HK$112,371,000. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
as the current liabilities consisted of contract liabilities
from customers of approximately HK$51,826,000, which
are to be recognised as revenue upon rendering of the
relevant banquet services in the next financial year; and
amount of approximately HK$13,723,000 representing
bank borrowings being classified as current due to the
existence of the repayment on demand clause (Note 25) in
the loan agreements. The directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) believe that bank will probably not to exercise
its discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment and
the bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
repayment schedule.

—RER (&

AR ZHIEE (&)
REARREE2019F3A31HIEFE £
E¥BHNEEESBEENBAR (ARKEE
BH) G EMEFNEEEEIEEA —HE—%
B EAEER—n  KEERAREAAGE
MW EREENB R RREBREZM -
& - A RIF201846 828 H A A AL B A%
BAGE - REERAEEAZER T NEEE
£2019F3A31HIEF RSB EZ MK
HERSkA S BHARR E 20193 A31H (ARG &
BYE) —E AR RG] o B R AR AR BRI
#gE) AEE (BEAQRAREWNBAR)RE
HRERERRREREERESHES  A5H
(BEAARALREWNBAR) WAIEFEEE-
AR EAE S RFIEER AR WS FhE
BHEEMCEEESHRETMNES WREE
20193 A3 1B IEFEMGZRE M B HRED 27
ABEARRZEE  WMNEANREHIRE T
Ijjzo

M202063A31 0 AEE 2 RBAEFENA
54,869,000/ 7T I 2= A E518)F ’E4Y112,371,000
B RA BRI IRFECEEERE  F
MEBEEE451,826,0008 T2 EFAKE
& R T EMRFERERBESREZER
AU AN 413,723,000/ THIRITEE - H
AEZR a2 REREE G (KiFE25) Mo 1E
AR ARRES ([EE]) RBBRITTAA
e T RYIBREAE SR BB E FUE - HiRTTE
TR B REE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

GENERAL (Continued)
Basis of preparation and presentation (Continued)

The Directors consider that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations in the foreseeable
future and accordingly are satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied, for its first time,
the following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative

HKFRS 9 Compensation

Amendments to HKAS  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
19 Settlement

Amendments to HKAS  Long-term Interests in Associates
28 and Joint Ventures

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle

The adoption of HKFRS 16 resulted in the changes in
the Group's accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements
as summarises below. The application of other new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material effect on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

o 8 B S R B 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

—RER (&

RERSHIEE (&)
EERATEEBAKARLELES  BERT
ERKRTMELIREES  HSHE  RERE
ERERBEARBREARBIAY

%ﬁ%ﬂ&@%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%&
Bl

RAEE AEEEREBATHEBETMA
SRMEINA] REIEFT BH B MELER

FEMHREREN ME

£ 1658

H% (BEIRMBmE FSH 2 TREE M ZEE
ZEZeE)
— BREE239

BB EEL EBEBEHE BN
F9% ({B5]A)

EREHERFE195% FEIER] - GRS S
(BFTA)

BRI ERE28% REEARIREEREY
(BFTA) Bt

EBPEREED  2015F 2201 7FEHH
CEHENY) BB mEERF

JE B

RANBEBHBREENF16RGH TR AEE
VERTERREBELEZH PHERNGEE M B RE
RHSRIELRAE RAFEARAEMIHE
AP BREE REETHAEEE B KR
FENUBRREMRAK,HZEHEAHBR
RATENBRBELBEATE -
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~ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i 0 B S R i 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with
respect to lease accounting. It introduces significant changes
to the lessee accounting by removing the distinction
between operating lease and finance lease and requiring the
recognition of right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all
leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets. In contrast to lessee accounting, the requirements for
lessor accounting have remained largely unchanged. Details
of these new accounting policies are described in Note 3.
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 Leases retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity, where appropriate, at 1
April 2019, and has not restated comparatives for the 2019
reporting period as permitted under the specific transitional
provisions in the standard. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 17 Leases.

On transition to HKFRS 16, the Group elected to apply the
practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which
arrangements are, or contain, leases. It applied HKFRS 16
only to contracts that were previously identified as leases.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only
to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 April
2019.

The Group as lessee

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of
HKAS 17 Leases (except for lease of low value assets and
lease with remaining lease term of twelve months or less).
These liabilities were measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate as of 1 April 2019. The weighted
average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the
lease liabilities on 1 April 2019 ranged from 4.05% to 4.40%.

The Group recognises right-of-use assets of restaurants,
warehouses, advertising lightboxes, office premises and car
parking spaces and measures them at an amount equal to
the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments.

FERFHTREEIEENBEREE
Al (&)
RMESHEREENE16EEENTE
BB LR E 16 A E S AD| AR
THEETE R WHAR AR AEHE AR
2 SIRELHERREREZRNESD UK
BERMARERBEAELERHERE &
RERTE RIEBESERERIN - AEHNAERA
Si% - WA RIDENBT ABMER T - %
EHITRHBCENEBEHANES - AEED B
PR E S EHRE RS 165%HE MR
FEFBE R B R 201954 5 1 BRI HIX
WS AAME L MR - BIR R R B 16
XA+ A B 5120194 3745 B R #) He B K
Fo Ut AR BRI IRIEE S e S
17558 B MR8 - HUE T BV R R W4 AT AL 82 o

RBEERBYHREERNE165E  NEH
DREEABIEREIEN L BRI hL e
CEREEEHE - BRI AHENS
HEABR BN IERELEAE 1657 c WERER
B ENBI7TREES (BBRMERERE
ZET) REFEIRBRNAHEENEHLART
LAEFTRE - At B8 ERERERF 165718
THENEEEEAN2019F4A 1B ZEFT
ANEEE G K

AEBERABA

FRMB B ISREENE 165 NEEB
FREBEESEHENF17HREEN RIS EA
[EEHE | WHE (FEEEEEERERSKRT
HEHA+T—EASATHHEERIN) FERHE
EaE - hEaERGTHENRNIEE (A
A A2019%4 A1 B 818 E XA =)
T2 EAR2019F4 51 BHNAE & EH N
T EFA A EE KT EFL.05%E4.40% 2
] o

AEEEREE  BE  BEEM BRGAR

At & WRBEMEN B HBEE M FIEL T

%o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

o 8 B S R B 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FEAHIIERREBITEEHMEREE

TO HKFRSs (Continued) Al ()

Impact on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BRpE BN EREEANZ16FEENHE (&)

The Group as lessee (Continued) AEBMEBERBA (B)

The following table summarises the impact of transition to TREMMR2019F4 A1 BBEERBMIERE

HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019. Line items that were not affected ZHE16FNEE WERART RS HER

by the adjustments have not been included. ZHIEH o

Carrying
amount Carrying
previously Impact on amount as
reported at 31  adoption of restated at 1
Notes March 2019 HKFRS 16 April 2019
120194 RMEB 120194
3A31H B3R s 481H
KRIE 25K Z R ZE1655 KE
B aE RREE B & REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F#&T FET

Property, plant and equipment %13 « /5 K& a 85,433 (2,589) 82,844

Right-of-use assets ERAEEE a-d - 457,131 457,131

Trade and other receivables B 5 R H MW GRIE c 41,176 (1,939) 39,237

Trade and other payables B 5 R HA RN RIE d (50,285) 1,498 (48,787)

Other payables HAth FE T FIR d (22,088) 17,988 (4,100)

Lease liabilities HEEE b - (472,089) (472,089)

Notes: B -

(@)  The Group has recorded estimated cost of the restoration for (@) M2019F4A18  AEESFEELRER
the rented premises previously and included in property, plant VIR TR RFT A E  BE K& EL
and equipment amounting to approximately HK$2,589,000 2,589,0008 - EHSHEARESFEHESE
as at 1 April 2019. Such amount was adjusted to right-of-use EE o
assets.

(b) As at 1 April 2019, right-of-use assets were measured at (b) M2019F4818  FABEENZBEEREE
an amount equal to the lease liabilities of approximately B 1549472,089,000/8 LA & Bzt & ©
HK$472,089,000.

() Prepaid rental of approximately HK$1,939,000 as at 31 March (0 M201943AH31H AL 41,939,000/ T
2019 was reclassified to right-of-use assets. BN EEFRAEEE-

(d)  The amounts represented the accrued lease liabilities for (d ZEFEEFRDBEACREEBHNEEZE
leases where the lessor has provided rent-free period, and was AHEABEARBEERBVHEHRELEAE16
adjusted to right-of-use assets on transition to HKFRS 16. KR EFRAEESE -
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~ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

G ONRRERN

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Starting from 1 April 2019, in the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the Group as a lessee is required to split rentals
paid under capitalised leases into their capital element and
interest element. These elements are classified as financing
cash outflows, similar to how leases previously classified
as finance leases under HKAS 17 were treated, rather than
as operating cash outflows, as was the case for operating
leases under HKAS 17. The total cash flows are unaffected.

Differences between operating lease commitment as at
31 March 2019, the date immediately preceding the date
of initial application, discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate, and the lease liabilities recognised as at 1

ERHIIRKEITEBNKREE
Al (@)
RAESHBREES16HATNTE (5)
KEFEBERBEA ()

H2019F4H 1B REEERERERT K
5B (T’E#ﬂ?@ﬁ/\)/,\H—rE§$f|ZTHf£\TEI'JEH

HEn /SEARID KFE M#.:IE el
RBERSRE (Eﬂf‘iﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁi&% RIS

175ﬁfﬂf§’\*ﬁﬁ"yﬂﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ@) 1]
TROSBALERESRN (WEBSFTERSF
175 TEEHRENBER) HEREBBIZF

o,
=

R2019F3A31H (ANREE X ER HEAT—
B) - 1238 S 5 50F R AR A &M B AR E R
2019F A1 BERMEEGEMEZENT

April 2019 are as follow:

HK$'000
F#&T
Operating lease commitment disclosed as at 31 March M2019F3 A3 1 BB EHEE
2019 S 377,561
Less: Contracts committed but not yet commenced at 1 J& : 72201954 A1 H iHARFHHE
April 2019 EEEL (16,538)
Less: Short-term leases and other leases with remaining  J& : }2 BiFA & K 82 T FHE52 20204
lease term ending on or before 31 March 2020 SA3MBs AR IFEMBEE (12,951)
Less: Leases of low-value assets B EEEEERE (69)
Add: Extension options reasonably certain to be - EREER TITENEREER
exercised 182,512
530,515
Discounting effect using the incremental borrowing rate 7201944 A1 B iR1% & (& 5k A= A5E
at 1 April 2019 % (58,426)
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 R2019F4 81 BZ2HEARE 472,089
Current portion BIEAES 5 100,307
Non-current portion FERNHAEL 7> 371,782
472,089
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

SOMKERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Practical expedients applied

On the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group
has used the following practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

3 not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a
lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for
contracts entered into before the transition date the
Group relied on its assessment made applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease;

3 the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar characteristics;

o the accounting for operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 April 2019
as short-term leases;

° the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application; and

° the use of hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

ERHIIREEITEBNKEREE
Al (@)
RNESHBRELES1HAENTE (5)
PR TR 5
RERERAE S BRELRE165%2E -
A B B IR AR B FT 2t SF A T A TR
%

s THEERERBHENFEANZEER
ExEalE - ARk HAREBRERRZ
ARV HEX AREXRERERAEES
SHEAFENTHREER (BRM RS2 E
ZEg)REBIREE -BLHAREES
THE AR R AT -

« YWEAARBMEHNASMAAERE—
BRI

. H2019F4 81 B EI4FMHETE+ — @
AR eenestRE AR EE:

s MNBERERBRERIMAERKAUTE
EREEE: &

o ESHNBREERIKLILHEOHEER A
FROERFETHE -

a
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~ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact on adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contract?

Amendments to Definition of a Business*
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to Covid-19-Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions®

Amendments to HKAS  Definition of Material
1 and HKAS 8

Revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting’

Conceptual
Framework for
Financial Reporting
2018

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined

e Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020

The Directors anticipate that the application of new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the consolidated financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company upon the reorganisation.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
Group’s returns.

The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive expenses or income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
expenses or income of subsidiaries are attributed to the
owners of the Company.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those services. Specifically, the Group uses a
5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

3 Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Control of the service may be transferred over time or at a
point in time. Control of the service is transferred over time
if:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the service transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised
at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the
service.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for good sold and services rendered in
the normal course of business, net of discounts.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at a point in
time when control of goods is transferred being at the point
the customers purchase the goods.

Revenue from restaurant operation is recognised at a
point in time when the catering services are provided to
customers. Receipts in respect of services that have not been
rendered are deferred and recognised as contract liabilities.
Upon confirmation of cancellation received from customers
and expiration of the date of deposits received for the
relevant catering service, the corresponding deposit received
is fully recognised as forfeiture of deposits received.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities represent the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customers.

Taxation

Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from (loss) profit before tax as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary difference between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of the
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

SOMKERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAEFEHE (&)

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either (i) the
same taxable entity; or (ii) different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

BE (E)
BELERARBARKRERMBRRAELZE
AR EE T AR RAREAZFERE
B2 BRI RS A A R R AT RE T g B
B B ERERBE MR EREZEMELL
EFETHIRE B2 I AL A 2 59 M8 R B0 1) AT BA
ERERER R B BT RG] AR
(O] ¥ T LARERR o

BELEFRBEERAENS RS HRETRIYL
BMENBAIEEH RAERDG M AR KR E 2
KB EERIZER °

BEERBREERBBENRSHRACEMKE
HERBGHOHRE (RFOX) RBEHREERER
HHREEDRRBERNHEE -

BEXERBABREEERRASENRSEH
AR TAROKEEEEE R B ENKRE
BERHRBER -

BRI GAMITHEN R A AT IR S E E A
HMIBRREEE ARFER RS OF—
ERTE R (iR &SRR B A KER
EHERENEEFTEAETIFER  BRIF
BELGEHNGHBAARIREEXRKERE
EMMEEABZ TRARBERRW ZFAENA
AR BEER BB THEE-

BIEA SR FE R TR B an AR

Annual Report 2020 &



~ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i 0 B S R i 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Policy applicable on or after 1 April 2019

Definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with
respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee,
except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets.
For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted
by using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the Group's
lease liability comprise fixed lease payments (including
in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using
the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAE:HHEHE (&)

(Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

Policy applicable on or after 1 April 2019 (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Lease liability is remeasured (and with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using revised discount rate; and

° a lease contract is modified and the lease modification
is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of
the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or
before the commencement date and any initial direct costs,
less lease incentives received.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to
dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on
which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, provision is recognised and measured under HKAS 37
“Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.
The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period
of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. The
depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a right-
of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease liability
and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are
included in the line “Property rentals and related expenses”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Policy applicable on or after 1 April 2019 (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Lease modification
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expenses on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAEFEHE (&)

(Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of the Group (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rate of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences, arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

The Group contributes to a Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The scheme is a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee
and is available to all employees. The MPF is funded by
payments from employees and by the Company, and provide
benefits linked to contributions and investment returns on
the scheme. Contributions to the scheme are recognised as
an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the year to which the
contributions relate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of wages and salaries, in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Long service payment

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the
Group is required to make long service payments to its
employees upon the termination of their employment or
retirement on ground of old age when the employee fulfils
certain conditions and the termination meets the required
circumstances. Further, where accrued benefits (excluding
any part attributable to the employee’s contributions) have
been paid to the employee, or is being held in a mandatory
provident fund scheme by the employee, which is the case
for most of the eligible employees of the Group, the long
service payment is offset against the aforementioned amount
of benefits to the extent that they relate to the employee’s
years of service for which the long service payment is
payable.

Based on the Group’s past experience and the Directors’
knowledge of the business and work force, the Group
makes its estimates of its obligations to make long service
payments to its employees in the event of termination of
their employment or retirement. The Group’s obligations
to make such long service payments are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements as long service payment
liabilities at the present value of the long service payment
obligations, which are estimated after deducting the
entitlements accrued under the Group’s defined contribution
retirement scheme that are attributable to contributions
made by the Group. Service cost on the long service
payment are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAEFEHE (&)

(Continued)
Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value
measurements into three levels, based on the characteristics
of inputs, as follow:

Level 1:  Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:  Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3:  Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair
value measurement.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately in profit or loss. An
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
in the cash-generating unit on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

o 8 B S R B 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAE:HHEHE (&)

(Continued)
Impairment losses on non-financial assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
the cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately in
profit or loss.

Investment in a subsidiary

Investment in a subsidiary is stated in the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-
in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, as defined above.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value, except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
The Group's financial assets are classified as subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

Classification and measurement of financial assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

3 the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Impairment under expected credit losses (the “ECL”) model
The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAEFEHE (&)

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment under expected credit losses (the “ECL”) model
(Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balances and/or collectively using
a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

3 significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular debtor, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

3 an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a
low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow
obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

o 8 B S R B 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAEFEHE (&)

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

o information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when the
instrument is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower; or

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event; or

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAEFEHE (&)

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the a group
entity are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value is material).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgement, estimates and assumptions about the amounts
of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
Going concern basis

Although the Group has net current liabilities of
approximately HK$54,869,000 as at 31 March 2020 and
incurred loss of approximately HK$112,371,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2020, the Group manages its liquidity risk
by monitoring its current and expected liquidity requirements
regularly and ensuring sufficient liquid cash to meet the
Group’s liquidity requirements in the short and long term.
Details of the factor that may cast doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern are disclosed in Note 1.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Determination of lease term of contracts with renewal
and termination options

Lease liability is initially recognised at the present value
of the lease payments payable over the lease term. In
determining the lease term at the commencement date
for leases that include renewal options exercisable by the
Group, the Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the
renewal options taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the
Group to exercise the option, including favorable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the importance
of that underlying asset to the Group’s operations. The
lease term is reassessed when there is a significant event or
significant change in circumstance that is within the Group’s
control. Any increase or decrease in the lease term would
affect the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised in future years.

Key sources of estimation uncertainties

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainties at
the end of the reporting period and have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group's management determines the estimated useful
lives and the depreciation method in determining the
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets. The estimate is based
on the management’s experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions and expected useful lifes for right-of-use assets.
Actual economic useful lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciation period and therefore depreciation charge in the
future period.

o 8 B S R B 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainties (Continued)

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)
In addition, management assesses impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is the higher
of its fair value less cost to disposal and its value-in-use.

The calculations require the use of judgements and
estimations, particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the cash generating
units (“CGU")/assets may not be recoverable; (ii) whether
the carrying amount of the CGU/asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, including the
estimated revenue growth rate, operating costs and discount
rate adopted in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the recoverable amount and amount of impairment
loss and as a result affect the Group’s financial position and
results of its operations.

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
approximately HK$79,947,000 (2019: HK$85,433,000) and
HK$433,616,000 (2019: nil) respectively, net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$12,545,000 (2019:
HK$1,418,000) and HK$27,729,000 (2019: nil) respectively.

Provision for reinstatement costs

Provision for reinstatement costs is estimated at the inception
of leasing property with reinstatement clause and reassessed
at the end of the reporting period with reference to the
valuation performed by an independent valuer. Estimation
based on current market information may vary over time and
could differ from the actual reinstatement cost upon closures
or relocation of existing premises occupied by the Group.
As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amounts of provision for
reinstatement costs are approximately HK$9,503,000 (2019:
HK$8,298,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remained unchanged during both years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes bank borrowings, net of bank balances
and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the Group,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As
part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on the recommendation of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, the issue of new shares, raising of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

o 8 B S R B 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

EXEmEE

AEBMEEBETNEAAERAEE N EBESN
FEKE  WEBBLERRERERBBIRS
KERABR - AR B 2 BRI M EFEER

AEENEARBREFER  BRERITER
(MBERTERNBE SR ASEREE ARG
o BREBETRARMER)

EETHENEARE -EREHN M0 &
EEREAKNARSBRIER S KRR - A&
BHREEENHEBER  BBRIRMKE - #1T
A  BEMEBXERREGES  FERE
BARRE -

ERTH
(@) &MIAMF

2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBxT FHIT
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost (including  3Z# S5 AHERN & BB E
bank balances and cash) (BFERITEHBNIES) 218,465 322,243
Financial liabilities SRIAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HEHEK AT ENERAE 57,938 98,590

(b) Financial risk management objective and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include rental
deposits, trade and other receivables, time deposit
with maturity over three months, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables and bank borrowings.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

Market risk

(i)

(i)

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency transactions
settled in United States dollar (“USD"), which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

Since HK$ is pegged to USD, the historical
exchange rate fluctuation on USD is insignificant.
Thus there is no significant exposure expected on
USD transactions and balances. Hence, the Group
does not have any material foreign exchange
exposure.

The Group monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group was exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to interest-free rental deposits and
fixed-rate time deposit with maturity over three
months.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to its bank balances which carry
prevailing market interest and bank borrowings
(see Note 25 for details of the borrowings). It
is the Group’s policy to keep them at floating
rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (the “"HIBOR") and Hong
Kong dollars best lending rate (the “BLR") arising
from the Group's bank borrowings.

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank balances is minimal as
these balances have a short maturity period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis to cash flow interest rate
risk below has been determined based on the
exposure of the Group's bank borrowings to
interest rates at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis points increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates has been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's loss after tax (2019: profit after
tax) would increase/decrease (2019: decrease/
increase) by approximately HK$374,000 (2019:
HK$479,000) for the year.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Trade receivables mainly represent receivables from
financial institutions in relation to the payment settled
by credit cards of which the settlement is normally
within 3 days from transaction date. The financial
institutions are primarily reputable and creditworthy
financial institutions and have strong financial position.
The management considers the credit risk is low.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In determining the ECL for trade and other receivables,
the management of the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-looking
information and concluded that credit risk inherent in
the Group’s outstanding trade and other receivables
are insignificant. The management of the Group has
assessed that trade and other receivables have not
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and probability of default is low.

The Group applies the simplified approach to assess the
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for all trade receivables. Based on historical experience,
majority of the trade receivables were settled within
credit term, hence the expected loss rate of current
trade receivables are assessed to be close to zero. The
loss allowance provision for these balances was not
material during the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019.

The credit rating of other receivables was performing.
The Group has assessed that the expected credit
losses for these receivables are not material under
the 12 months expected losses method. Thus, no loss
allowance provision was recognised during the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The management of the Group considers time deposit
with maturity over three months and bank balances
are deposited with financial institutions with high
credit rating to be low credit risk financial assets. The
Directors consider that the probability of default is
negligible on the basis of high-credit-rating issuers.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as at 31 March
2020, as the Group has net current liabilities of
approximately HK$54,869,000. As detailed in Note 1,
the Directors are of the opinion that the Group will be
able to finance its future working capital and to fulfill
its financial obligation when they fall due.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
debt covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from banks and other financial institutions
to meet their liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term. Management believes that there
is no significant liquidity risk as the Group is able to
generate net cash inflow from operating activities and
to satisfy its future working capital and other financing
requirements from its operation cash flows and
available bank financing.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

o 8 B S R B 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

6. @I AR (®
(b) HEEMEEAERKE (&)

=ERE (&)
AEENEEERRIHEEB=AAN
EHREFERERAREEFROTBERET
HHRITEBRAEEERRNEREE -
EERRBOMERSEETRBETAN
HEEBUARE -

TEE & E R
AEER2020F3A31BAERBE
B AAAEENRSHEEFENL
54,869,000/ 7T o M AOMIFE 1 ATl - =
RE AEBEBERNIEBERREEES
BEWNH BB BITIMBEE-

AEENRRETHERE R REHOR
HECHRREBRFAAR  BERER T
MRS REMRITREMMEBEERHERT
RRE UneRBLEHANRBEST
K- EREMRE BRAKERENEHEE
BRERENADFRITREELLLA
BEREAAFELMEERAREEER
ENEMREFT K HUBENRDED
B2

REERBE SRR  NEEEENER
EEERRSRANE SRR FEYK
FoAARENEERNES BERS
MERPNTE ERERBRLEEDE
EHRSERRBESNTENRIR - 2
EBEERITERNERARRERETERR

At
ah °

77

Annual Report 2020 &



~ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A
wn [

H B ek B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities and lease liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and lease liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
maturity dates for non-derivative financial liabilities
and lease liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

6. E@MI AR (®

(b)

MEEAREEEERBE (&)
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TRAMAKBIITASRABNIEESR
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At 31 March 2020

12020%3A31R
Repayable on  More than 1 More than 2 Total
demand or year but less years but less More than 5 undiscounted Carrying
within 1 year than 2 years than 5 years years  cash flows amount
RERS BB1F BB BRER
MEREE BHmaE BHR5E BiBSF BeRE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THER TR TR T TR
Non-derivative financial FTEemaR
liabilities
Trade and other payables &5 REMER
HE 13,152 - - - 13,152 13,152
Bank borrowings RITIEN 44,786 - - - 44,786 44,786
57,038 - - - 57,938 57,038
Lease liabilities HEAE 140,734 119,357 261,364 27,423 548,878 500,784
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

6. @I AR (®

Financial risk management objective and policies (b) MKEMEBEAERBE (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HBELEE (1E)
At 31 March 2019
R2019%3A31R
Repayable on  More than 1 More than 2 Total
demand or year but less years but less More than 5 undiscounted Carrying
within 1 year than 2 years than 5 years years  cash flows amount
RERY HiB1F Him2E BRER
MEREER  BLR2EF BIRSEF HiB5F Reng FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TR TAT THT TR TAT
Non-derivative financial ~ JEATE SR
liabilities afE
Trade and other B 5 KHEME
payables IR 41,283 - - - 41,283 41,283
Bank borrowings FATIEK 57,307 - - - 57,307 57,307
98,590 - - - 98,590 98,590

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are classified as “on demand or within 1 year”. As
at 31 March 2020, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$44,786,000 (2019: HK$57,307,000).
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
Directors do not believe that it is probable that the
bank will exercise it discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such
bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will amount to approximately
HK$45,740,000 (2019: HK$59,513,000).

Fair value

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost at the end of each reporting period
approximate to their corresponding fair values.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue represents amounts received and
receivable from the provision of catering services and sales
of goods, net of discount.

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of
performance focuses on the operating results of the Group
as a whole as the Group’s resources are integrated and no
discrete operating segment financial information is available.
Accordingly, no operating segment information is presented.

All of the Group's operations are located in Hong Kong.
The Group’s revenue from external customers and all of
its non-current assets are located in Hong Kong based on
geographical location of assets.

No revenue from individual external customer contributed

over 10% of total revenue of the Group for each of the
year.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

7 EEF
AR ERHERRE REERAME
W R B £ B (R o

RERSREERFEARADATES (8
FE@ERRE) BENEHEDRARBNE
REERE DERAEEODREERA R
W ARIEE D BT ER - Bkt - I8 2 5148
SEER -

AEBRAERBHURES - AEBRAINRE
Fom REMAI R EENREEMNMIEN
EMEDARNERS -

REEE - BHER B ERINRE PR (h A&
B AR 10% A F o

W58 B E AU A

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Revenue g
Chinese restaurant operations (Note a) REUEIEEE (tta) 650,801 848,567
Other income Hiug A
Sponsorship income received from utility B AR A FUEEY & B
companies (Note b) WA (MsEDb) 3,178 2,993
Government grants (Note c) BT AL (MizEc) 2,600 =
Forfeiture of deposits received (Note a) BB IR S (MizEa) 2,297 2,436
Bank interest income RITHEUA 1,362 46
Sundry income TR 1,450 1,143
Imputed interest income on non-current FEENHAH SRS MEBERTE
rental deposits WA 1,246 1,279
Interest income from deposit placed for a life 1% ASREREH DU A
insurance policy 543 530
Concession of reinstatement cost BB A E R 361 -
13,037 8,427
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

8. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (Continued) 8. WHEKREMBA (&)

Notes: BT :
(@)  Revenue derived from Chinese restaurant operations and (@) RPXEEEEEENRERZIE Iz K
forfeiture of deposits received are from contract with BEEFPHNEHRNE —RERER -

customers and recognised at a point in time.

(b)  Sponsorship income received from utility companies is (b) BAHREAFWEHEWAREEBREE
recognised when there is reasonable assurance that all SPRTE M A G R W ER A BE R TR - 0P B A
attaching conditions are complied with the subsidies received. AIE—IEEERR A TESARERALR I
Where the subsidies relates to an asset, the fair value is RIEEEE RFBEAIFAFEHANIREE S HF
credited to a deferred income account and is released to SRAEZRER-

profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalment.

() For the year ended 31 March 2020, the government grants (0 HZE2020F3A31HILFE - BUTHEEEAT
represented subsidies from government for supporting B IR SR R A FAL o BN AL B BUT
business development. The government grants are granted BOIERH - W IEAE M o
at the discretion of the government and are not recurring in
nature.

The transaction price allocated to the performance obligation PEZREXBAOEENZZERAEKE - THH

that is unsatisfied, has not been disclosed, as substantially all MAEBRBAEHE AR A —FHIAT

of the Group's contracts have a duration of one year or less.

9. OTHER (LOSSES) GAIN, NET 9. Hft (B k&EZFHE
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Other (losses) gain, net Hith (&8 W FHE
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets (Note — {FREEEREERE
17) (KtsE17) (27,729) -
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y% - B kR EREREE
equipment (Note 16) (MizE16) (12,545) (758)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - B R
equipment - 1,337
(40,274) 579
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10.

HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments of directors and chief executive (“CE")

for the each reporting period were as follows:

~ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EERBESHFHA LM

() EERTRAZME
BEEERTHAR ([THRAR]) RER
RGN NS

Retirement
benefit scheme

Fees Salaries  contributions Total
EHREF
we e STEIHR et
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx FEx FEx
Emoluments paid or WETES
receivable in respect of (BHERA
a person'’s services as DA RENE
a director, whether of AaEl) BEA
the Company and its RISE Rk
subsidiary undertakings FE Ut B &
Year ended 31 March HZ20205F
2020 3A31BLLEE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chan (Chairman) BRESE (EFF) - 4,750 21 4,771
Ms. Chen (CE) BRAcE (1T AEEL) - 1,140 21 1,161
Ms. Qian Bt - 952 21 973
Independent non-executive BN IFHITES
directors
Mr. Chan Koon Yuen [C T e
Windaus 120 - - 120
Mr. Ng Kwok Tung RBIRR S 120 - - 120
Mr. Yue Ming Wai REGHERE
Bonaventure 120 - - 120
360 6,842 63 7,265
Year ended 31 March HZ2019F3H31H
2019 IEFE
Executive directors WITES
Mr. Chan (Chairman) BREE (EFF) - 5,000 76 5,076
Ms. Chen (CE) BRZx+ (FTER 4% ) - 890 37 927
Ms. Qian Bt - 766 29 795
Independent non-executive BV IFFHITES
directors
Mr. Chan Koon Yuen PR R
Windaus 15 - - 15
Mr. Ng Kwok Tung hBIR LA 15 = - 15
Mr. Yue Ming Wai RS
Bonaventure 15 - - 15
45 6,656 142 6,843

Palace Banquet Holdings Limited & 3245 A% AR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

10. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The remuneration shown above represented
remuneration received and receivable from the
Group by these directors in their capacity as
employees to the operating subsidiaries for the
both years.

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019, no retirement benefits payments or benefits
in respect of termination of directors’ services
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the
directors; nor are any payable. No consideration
was provided to or receivable by third parties for
making available directors’ services.

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019, no significant transactions, agreements
and contracts in relation to the Group's business
to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted.

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019, there were no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealing arrangements in favour of the directors,
or controlled body corporate and connected
entities of such directors.

Mr. Chan was appointed as the director of
the Company on 7 June 2018. Ms. Chen and
Ms. Qian were appointed as the directors of
the Company on 28 June 2018. The directors’
emoluments were presented as if the directors
had been appointed throughout the year ended
31 March 2019. Mr. Chan was designated as the
chairman of the board. Ms. Chen is also the CE
of the Company and her emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by her
as the CE.

Mr. Chan Koon Yuen Windaus, Mr. Ng Kwok
Tung and Mr. Yue Ming Wai Bonaventure were
appointed as the independent non-executive
directors of the Company on 25 January 2019.

o 8 B S R B 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

10. EERBESHFMALIME (&)

(a)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

ESRTHRARME (8)

LA HMIEEEMEFEREE
EUREERLENBRATREN
F 10 B ALK B E WA FE W ERH F
B -

REE20209F %2019 3318 1t
FE BERKEISEERBMEESK
M M E SN RREEMERAKRE
A~ SRIAARH TP AT (AT E LE FE AT
KRR A] - FIB SR T o LA BLE
BEEZREMmAE = ARERES
FE= it mERER(E

RELZ2020F X 2019%F3 318 1
FE AR BT A S E T
B MARRESHREFEFEKR
Flzs (TwEZEE)  BEFED
FRERRZS  HaEkEL -

RELZ2020F % 201943 A318 1
FE BMENEERAZSESHT
THEE R AETEE AT RANE
K EERREAMR G HE

PRICAER2018F6 A7HEZR T AL
NAEEF Rz MEZITH2018
FeR28AERTEAARATES - Fff
2 E SIS MM EFEEZ=20195F
SAIHILEFEEEEERT R
ERETRESTEER BRI A
RPD BT AB R I OB B A E
B B0 3 PR 1T R AR A B 755 P IR 4 AR
EHM 2 o

M2019%F1 8258 BE&E%EE
RREERRBELEEEZTEE
REIBIERITES -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. EENEEFMALTENE (&)
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) ESRTHRARME (8)

(Continued)

(vii) Neither the CE nor any of the directors waived (vii) RE(Z2020F &%2019F3 8318 1k
any emoluments in the years 31 March 2020 and FE  THESREMESHEBE
2019. EAIENE -

(viii) No director fees were paid to these executive (vii) B{Z=2020F M201943A31H IEF
directors in their capacity as executive directors B BMEREAT AR NEENBA
of the Company or the operating subsidiaries ANRITEEMRZENTEES
and no emoluments were paid by the Company NEFHBS  ANARINEENRBAR]
or the operating subsidiaries to the executive HEAMITESNBE  ERMA
directors as an inducement to join the Company RNAEISEENE A FH) 52E) - i
or the operating subsidiaries, or as compensation AR ARE

for loss of office during each of the years ended
31 March 2020 and 2019.

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EBEREHFMAL
The five highest paid for the years ended 31 March REE2020% K%2019F3 318 LFE -
2020 and 2019 include three directors whose hEZxaTMATERE=2F= " L5
remuneration are set out in note (a) respectively. | BRI FE(a) - RELZE 20203 H31H
Details of the remuneration of the remaining 2 (2019: 2) IEEE #1248 (20194 : 28 ) WIEAR
highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 March RIESN R TMATRFHIEE D T
2020, who are not directors of the Company, are N

analysed below:

2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Salaries, allowances and other benefits Fre  ERN R EAE A 1,259 1,340
Retirement benefits schemes contributions iR RFEFIFTEI4E 36 36
1,295 1,376
The emoluments of the remaining individuals fell within BRTATHMEN FATEHE :
the following bands:
2020 2019
20204 20194
Nil to HK$1,000,000 ZZ1,000,0007 7T 2 2
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in 5 B P SR 2R Bt 5
For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. EENEEFMALTENE (&)

HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) EEBRSEHFMAL (B)

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors,
CE and the five highest paid individuals to join or upon
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

HZE2020F K2019F3 831 HIEEE K
SEMERNES TRAZRIEZRSH
AL HEE  (EARSIFEMEARE
sk hnBa e 2 SEE - SkEERAELE -

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. MBRA

2020 2019
2020%F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 17) HEaFEMNE (KwE17) 20,985 =
Interest on bank borrowings RITEFRFE 1,625 2,142

Unwinding of discounting on provision for 1E1E R AN B 1 R IR )
reinstatement costs (Note 26) (FfzE26) 123 168

Imputed interest on rental deposits on initial ~ FFEREFNHEESIRS
recognition HFEF B - 2,793
22,733 5,103

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 12. iSRRI
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current income tax — Hong Kong: BUEARRIS I — &S -

Current year provision NEEEAE 1,043 14,244
Under provision in prior years BEFEEEDE 358 296
1,401 14,540
Deferred tax (Note 20) EIERIA (FFE20) 4,632 (1,586)
6,033 12,954

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years. For the year of
assessments 2018/19 and 2019/20, a two-tiered profits tax
rates was introduced of which one subsidiary of the Group

can elect 8.25% tax rate for its first assessable profits of &Ko

HK$2,000,000.

A8 RIS B T 1% R B F E 89 {8 5T 18 &R B i A
16.5% 58 ° 182018/19%2019/20 2 Fi F /& -
SIAFEH MRS - NEEr—FHE AR R 5
HpERR R % A B 2,000,00058 TTiR £8.25% KI Y
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

FEHEX @)
BENSHNERABAR RS ([AEAAR
BE | WBARES AEEHEERERS
REB GRS SN AFRER-

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 12.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
BVI.

PIEHAX AR RREREEmEKaER
PRERRTEAT (&R ) MM RN T :

The income tax expenses can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follow:

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FB 7T

(Loss) profit before tax BrEiAl (E518) m Al (106,338) 50,703
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of WA R G E16.5%H)

16.5% A (17,546) 8,366
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax 5+ & F5 I8 R &R < B %

purpose s 2 10,837 4,714
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax T E R IRR TR WA

purpose g2 (3,792) (1,034)

Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 358 296
Tax effect of deductible temporary difference AR A HIREFIEZE 2

not recognised MBTE 6,566 122

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIBE B 2 RBHE 9,895 964

Utilisation of tax loss not recognised B AR FERTIAEE - 9)

Effect of tax concession granted EYRIBEENZE (165) (165)

Effect of tax exemption granted (Note) FERRFHBATE (M) (120) (300)

Income tax expenses for the year FERTSHE 6,033 12,954

Details of deferred tax are set out in Note 20.

Note: Tax exemption represented a reduction of Hong Kong Profits

BT IAR FEHITE M 520 -

Tax for the year of assessment 2018/2019 and 2019/2020
by 75% and 100%, subject to a ceiling of HK$20,000 and

HK$20,000.

et : U EA R 2 152018/201952019/2020:8 4 F

EHEBREHR A 75% K 100% @ B R4
E& 57 5 A20,0007 7T 20,0005 7T °
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

13. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after charging

13. £ (BE) aF

FR (BR)BFRHR (FTA) TIRED:

(crediting):
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&TT
Directors’ remuneration E=5
— Other emoluments —HE 7,202 6,701
— Contributions to retirement benefits —RIRE AT B X
scheme 63 142
7,265 6,843
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e ER M EMER]

(excluding Directors’ remuneration) (TBEESEEFH) 220,184 243,008
Reversal of provision of long service payment K EHAARTS(~ 7k B (55 [0 (1,024) (103)
(Reversal of) provision of unutilised annual AEAFR (D) #H

leave (2,326) 717
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme  RRERFIEIHEZR (T E1E

(excluding directors’ remuneration) BEHH) 8,091 9,731

224,925 253,353
Total staff costs 8 TR 232,190 260,196
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 118,598 =
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BB REETE
equipment 34,279 25,523
152,877 25,523
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets AR ERERE 27,729 =
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y% BE MR BRI EEE

equipment 12,545 758
Auditor’s remuneration (included in 1% 2 B 5 A

other expenses) (FFAEMRAS) 1,150 1,280
Premium and handling charges on a life ASRENRERFER

insurance policy (included in other (FrAEAMRR)

expenses) 221 220
Repairs and maintenance (included in HIERRE (GTAEMMAX)

other expenses) 6,814 6,738
Insurances (included in other expenses) R (GTAEMBRAY) 5,262 3,804
Advertising and promotion (included in other EERE®E (;FAEMAY)

expenses) 4,523 5,086
Legal and professional fees (included in other AENEZEEH (5t AHM

expenses) FZ) 4,168 1,802
Bank charges (included in other expenses) RITWE (FTAEMES) 7,083 9,897
Consumables (included in other expenses) SHFEM (FTAEAMRAS) 5,975 6,098
Cleaning fee (included in other expenses) BB ((tAHEMREY) 18,217 16,576
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

13.

14.

15.

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the amounts
of minimum lease payments and contingent rent of
approximately HK$144,313,000 and HK$1,325,000 were
recognised as the operating lease rental on land and
buildings.

DIVIDENDS

No final dividend was paid or proposed by the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, nor has any final
dividend been proposed since the end of the year ended 31
March 2020.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, interim dividends of
approximately HK$14,000,000 (2020: nil) were declared and
distributed by the companies now comprising the Group to
the then owners of the companies.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share is to
the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

13.

14.

15.

FR (EE)&F (@
HZE2019F3A31HILFE  xIEHEENF K&K
SRS 5 BI41144,313,0005 7T )2 1,325,0005%8
THERALTHREFLEHERS -

ﬁ/%\

HZE2020F %2019F3A31 B IEEE - AR A
WESL Mk iZZ AR E - BEE202093 H31
BIFFEERE INMEEZ T ARBERE -

HZE2019F3A31BILFEE  AEERFET
NAARARERBEE ASIR MK HRELH
14,000,000/ T (2020F : &)

ZK (BR) &R
ARRHE AREFRER (B18) BRI HRE
DTS

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to RARIHEE ABLERN (E
owners of the Company 18) & A (112,371) 37,749
‘000 ‘000
TR T

Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ &RXEAR (EE ) ZF| &9 hntE

for the purpose of basic (loss) earnings per S EmRE e (M)

share (Note) 1,000,000 781,506

Note: The weighted average number of shares during the year
ended 31 March 2019 had taken into consideration of
750,000,000 ordinary shares (Notes 27(a), (b) & (c)) issued
under the reorganisation and the capitalisation issue and
250,000,000 ordinary shares (Note 27 (d)) issued under global
offering.

Diluted (loss) earnings per share is the same as basic (loss)
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the both years.

MizE: 212201943 A31 8 (- F E D A I #EF
HE - B R BEEEAREAETETH
750,000,000% & A% (HiFE27(a) ~ (b) R (<)) -
LA R AR 5 2 BREF & 2517 /9250,000,000 % & iR
B (PFE27(d)) °

PP W 18 4F 2 I SR AL (A B F B IE R B IT SN E
B HEREE (BR) ANESRER (B
18)&AHER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. ¥ -BERRE

Furniture and

Leasehold Leasehold  fixtures and Motor
property improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE-RKE
HENH HEEE ET ] AE st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TET TET TET TET TET
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4A1H 854 118,058 109,105 1,007 229,024
Additions NE - 22,460 19,469 - 41,929
Disposal & (854) - - - (854)
At 31 March 2019 M2019%3A31H - 140,518 128,574 1,007 270,099
Impact on initial adoption  ERFME B
of HKFRS 16 (Note 2) &2
F16HMTE
(K¥aE2) - (5,160) - - (5,160)
At 1 April 2019 (Restated) #2019F4HF1H
(REF) - 135,358 128,574 1,007 264,939
Additions nE - 29,202 14,725 - 43,927
Write-offs ik - (15,741) (14,946) (230) (30,917)
At 31 March 2020 72020F3A31H - 148,819 128,353 777 277,949
DEPRECIATION AND ERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2018 R20185F4A1H 161 79,572 77,810 1,007 158,550
Charge for the year FAMER 4 14,038 11,481 - 25,523
Elimination on disposal HER 8 (165) - - - (165)
Impairment loss recognised R iBEHERRE
in profit or loss B4 - 436 322 = 758
At 31 March 2019 and 1 #2019%3A31H
April 2019 %2019F4 81
A - 94,046 89,613 1,007 184,666
Impact on initial adoption ~ EXFAE B
of HKFRS 16 (Note 2) REER
F16RNTE
(Hf=E2) - (2,571) - - (2,571)
At 1 April 2019 (Restated) R2019F481H
(&ZE5) - 91,475 89,613 1,007 182,095
Charge for the year FRHR - 19,987 14,292 - 34,279
Elimination on write-offs i &% B3 ¥4 84 - (15,741) (14,946) (230) (30,917)
Impairment loss REBREZRE
recognised in profit or =]
loss - 7,756 4,789 - 12,545
At 31 March 2020 72020F3A31H - 103,477 93,748 777 198,002
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2020 72020%3A31H - 45,342 34,605 - 79,947
At 31 March 2019 M201943H31H - 46,472 38,961 - 85,433
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥1¥ - - BERRE (&)

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates or
useful lives per annum:

Over the shorter of the terms of
the lease or 50 years

Over the shorter of the terms of
the lease or 5 years

Leasehold property

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures 20%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 30%

Certain restaurants were making loss during the year due
to the economic downturn and the COVID-19 outbreak
and the operation may continue to be affected by the
uncertainties that brought by the COVID-19 outbreak. As a
result, the management recognised an impairment loss of
HK$12,545,000 (2019: HK$758,000) for certain property,
plant and equipment during the year ended 31 March 2020,
which was estimated based on the recoverable amount
of each individual restaurant cash generating unit based
on higher of the value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections and fair value less cost to disposal.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the recoverable
amounts of certain restaurants cash generating units are
determined based on the value-in-use calculation with
reference to valuation performed by an independent
professional valuer not connected to the Group. The
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a period of the remaining lease term
approved by the Directors and a pre-tax discount rate of
12.9%.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the recoverable
amount of a restaurant is determined based on the fair
value less cost to disposal using the market approach with
reference to the recent sales prices of similar assets within
the same industry, adjusting some unobservable inputs
such as condition and timing of transaction. Supsequent
to the year ended 31 March 2020, the property, plant and
equipment of abovementioned restaurant is disposed at
HK$2,000,000 which is close to its recoverable amount.

LA R R R TA BRI T
A AR ¢

HEWE RS0 F 2B E
HEEXE RS 2 REE
RE KERRE 20%
P 30%

AT T /B8 K COVID-19/83 - FARE T/HE
BRISEIE  REBARETEEZCOVID-1918
BERNTRERZTZE Bt BEERE
F2020F3A31ALLFERETYE  BEK
SR RE R EE1812,545,000/8 7T (20194 ¢
758,000 7T ) ' IR ESEBER SELESN
R ElSE  ZEREE (URESTEE A
H) RAFERDEXN AR E G

BE2020F3H31HLLFE & THEEHREEAL
BAuMARESREDREEREENE AL
2EMANEBEBNE Y BEGHEMETHN
BEETE TEAERARSREN  RREE
EHENBRTHERRRB AR E12.9%8
VRFEE AR

B ZE2020F3A318LFE  —MEER AU E
CENDEAMS AR ERENEUEED
MHEEERBREATEREEKAMET -
WHRAEETTIAEBEREGAZE RS IKER
B - 2220203 A31HIEFER » FitERE
B - = K& #A2,000,00058 TTHI MBS H
& - EE AU [B] © BEFET o
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

17. LEASES 17. HE

(i) Right-of-use assets (i) FEHAEEE
31 March 2020 1 April 2019
20204 20194
3H31H 481H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Leased restaurants HEnE 431,950 454,668
Warehouses BE 1,124 1,173
Advertising lightboxes EEEAE 499 954
Office premises PN E S 43 251
Car parking spaces JREL - 85
433,616 457,131

The Group has lease arrangements for leased
restaurants, warehouses, advertising lightboxes, office
premises and car parking spaces. The lease terms are
generally ranged from two to nine years.

Extension options are included in certain leases of
restaurants. Certain periods covered by extension
options were included in these lease terms as the
Group was reasonably certain to exercise the option.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, additions to the
right-of-use assets including capitalised lease payments,
initial direct costs and provision for reinstatement costs
amounted to approximately HK$128,985,000, due to
new/renewal of leases of restaurants and warehouse.

AEEEHEEE BE BEEEME MAE
WMEFCAEMNAER - HEH RN FRE
N e

FTEEEETREEREEREE ARAEES
EREITEZEER EREEERENSET
HREMAZSTHE -

EHZE2020F3A31ALFE R EEE
EREENRY WABEFEHEEE (BFEEAL
{EREN TR - TR B AR RIS E AN ) 4
/5128,985,000/& 7T
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

17. LEASES (Continued)

(@

(i)

17. #E (&)

Right-of-use assets (Continued) (i) FEREEE(8)
Certain restaurants were making loss during the year BAREE /B RCOVID-19/8% - FAE
due to the economic downturn and the COVID-19 THEERGER REBAIESEER
outbreak and the operation may continue to be affected COVID-19B BT RN T HEERRTE -
by the uncertainties that brought by the COVID-19 Eitt - EEEREZ=2020F3 83181t
outbreak. As a result, the management recognised an FTERETERREERRAREERE
impairment loss of HK$27,729,000 (2019: nil) for certain 27,729,000 7T (20194 : ) - JhiR#E
right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 March EHBERSELESMN A KRE S EM
2020, which was estimated based on the recoverable s mA el e B hiRFEREBENE LA
amount of each individual restaurant cash generating B zAhiRAReRERA - HRE
unit which based on the value-in-use calculation using EEH A TEE B KR AR X
cash flow projections based on financial budgets 12.9% K IR TAE R EXE -
covering a period of the remaining lease term approved
by the Directors and a pre-tax discount rate of 12.9%.
Lease liabilities (i) HEEE
31 March 2020 1 April 2019
20204 20194
3A31H 4H1H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Current inE)] 123,802 100,307
Non-current IERED 376,982 371,782
500,784 472,089
Amounts payable under lease liabilities HESEE FHEMGE
31 March 2020
2020%F
3A31H
HK$'000
FTET
Within one year —FRQ 123,802
After one year but within two years —F LA E BT EAMRE 105,952
After two years but within five years MELAE BTN BRAF 244,403
After five years iR 26,627
500,784
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months R 1216 A 7B BREY FE T FRIR
(shown under current liabilities) (ERBEERY]) (123,802)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1210 A 1& 2 BR 80 FE 1~ 518 376,982

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
entered into a number of new/renewed existing
arrangements in respect of leased restaurants
and warehouse and recognised lease liabilities of
approximately HK$125,700,000.

HZE2020F3A31HILFE  AEBREEHE
MABERIN ZEH ] EER AL WHERH
& B {E4125,700,0005 7T

Palace Banquet Holdings Limited & 3245 A% AR A 7

774



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

17. LEASES (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

o 8 B S R B 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

17. HE &)
(iii) RIEEEEHNRIE
Year ended 31

March 2020
BZ2020F
3A31BLFE
HK$’000
FTHET
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets EREEENTERX
— Leased restaurants —HERE 117,045
— Warehouses —BE 841
— Advertising lightboxes —BEEME 455
— Office premises —RREYEHE 208
— Car parking spaces —HEA 49
118,598
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNS 20,985
Expense relating to short-term leases EHHEERS 20,056
Expense relating to leases of low value assets REEEEHERS 110
Expense relating to contingent rent not included in P AHERGETERA
the measurement of the lease liabilities (included HEY (FGEAYERS KB
in property rentals and related expenses) FxZ) 21
Others (iv) Hft

At 31 March 2020, the Group is committed to
approximately HK$1,604,000 for lease agreements not
yet commenced.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the total
cash outflow for leases amount to approximately
HK$132,194,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
entered into rent concession arrangements with the
relevant landlords and derecognised right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities of approximately HK$6,173,000.

The leases of restaurants contain variable lease
payment terms that are based on sales generated from
the relevant restaurants and minimum annual lease
payment terms that are fixed. These payment terms are
common in restaurants in Hong Kong where the Group
operates.

M2020F3A31H  REBEGEAMBH
THE 7B A EAX91,604,00078 7T °

HZE2020F3A31BILFE HENRS
4B EAA) 5132,194,00078 7T

HE2020F3A31HILFE  AEFEERE
METT U THESEEWH WRIERE
REAREERAEREH6,173,0008
ﬁo

BENHEERERNEREEMELEE
B EHENRGER M EEREFEMR
ENRGHR - ZENREHELAEEL S
MBABBET+HER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

18. DEPOSIT PLACED FOR A LIFE INSURANCE 18. REBEASRERE

POLICY

In January 2016, the Group entered into a life insurance
policy with an insurance company to insure Mr. Chan, a
director of the Company. Under the policy, the Group is the
beneficiary and policy holder and the total insured sum is
UsSD4,000,000 (approximately HK$31,200,000). The Group
has paid an upfront deposit of USD1,906,502 (approximately
HK$14,855,000). The Group can terminate the policy at any
time and receive cash back based on the cash value of the
policy at the date of withdrawal, which is determined by the
upfront deposit payment of USD1,906,502 plus accumulated
interest earned and minus the accumulated insurance charge
and policy expense charge (“Cash Value”).

In addition, if withdrawal is made between the first to
nineteenth policy year, there is a specified amount of
surrender charge.

The insurance company will pay the Group an interest of
4% per annum on the outstanding Cash Value of the policy
for the first year. Commencing on the second year, the
interest will be at least 2% guarantee interest per annum.
The guarantee interest rate is also the effective interest rate
for the deposit placed on initial recognition, determined by
discounting the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the insurance policy, excluding the financial
effect of surrender charge.

The Directors considered that the possibility of terminating
the policy during the 1st to 19th policy year was low and
the expected life of the life insurance policy remained
unchanged since the initial recognition, accordingly,
the difference between the carrying amount of deposit
placed for a life insurance policy as at 31 March 2020 and
2019 and the Cash Value of the life insurance policy is
insignificant.

The deposit placed for a life insurance policy is denominated
in USD, a currency other than the functional currency of the
Group.

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, the life insurance policy has
been pledged as security for banking facilities granted to the
Group.

R2016F1 R AEEE—FHRRAFFIZAS
RE - ABARRBEEREERIR - BRIBRE

AEBAZm ARREREA ﬁxﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
4,000,000 7T (4931,200,000/87C) - A&EE
2 X fHERH% 41,906,502 7T (#4914,855,000
I o ANEE P BER AR IE R B8 R E R HRER B A
MRERSEERERE BEBRSRENES
381,906,502 Jo M AT BREX R 51 7 8. - B R 5T
REEEBRARREMAZKEETE ([ReEE]) -

FERARKNREEEFERREIREEE
FAREEX N FENKRI%NFE - BFE _Fil
NERKARIEBFRIENE2% - REMEITT R
RNTHERSFREROERMNE - T RER
HIE AR RACR S UGKRREIRMETE - B
HRERRTFEBENNBZE -

BERE NE1R19EREFERILRENT
BEMEE - WIEHAASRENFHA VT HEREHE
BRE Bt B ASREREN2020F K&
2019F3A31EMREBEREASRENR B
BEZENZEZBLTTEK-

KBRBASRERBUXTE ZTANEED

WIS EH o

20205 20193 A31H ' ASRERER
AR TAEENRITHE 2 KIFmMm -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19. EZ R EMEWRRIEA

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$000
FET F& T

Current BN EA
Trade receivables B 5 W GIR 399 6,653
Prepayments TEAS 7R 3,873 5,644
Rental deposits (Note) Heke (M) 6,768 15,281
Utility and other deposits PREEREMIZS 11,773 11,822
Other receivables Hth fE W SR IE 7,663 1,776
30,476 41,176

Note: Rental deposits amounting to HK$760,000 is forfeited by the
landlord subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2020 which
details in the Company’s announcement dated 12 June 2020.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019, the carrying
amount of prepaid rental included in prepayments of
approximately HK$1,939,000 was reclassified to right-of-use
assets.

The Group does not hold any collateral over the above
balances.

The Group's sales are mainly conducted in cash or by credit
cards of which the settlement period is normally within 3
days from transaction date. The credit period granted by the
Group to its corporate customers ranges 0 to 30 days.

The following is an ageing analysis of the trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates
the respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period.

MisE: L= 20203 A31HILFEE  EEXRIK
760,000 T EES - FRHNAAR B H
/20205E6 A12BHI A% -

R2019F4 A1 HIRMBE BT RMEEDF
1658 st ABBNZRENBEMNEASEmED
1,939,000 8 TE EF D BEFREEE -

ANER B L LR A RIS A A

AEENHETZURSHERRET SEH
—RERZHBPRAIAAN - AEEREQFT
PRHEMEEHNFO0E30A -

TSR REMRRIFEHZEH (EHEARES
REHRE) 270 E R IRMRE DT -

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THET

Within 30 days 30HA 84 6,653
31 to 60 days 31£60H - =
61 to 90 days 61290H 86 -
91 to 120 days 91&120H 229 -
399 6,653
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. EZ R EMEWRIE (&)

These balances are mianly due from financial institutions in ZERRTEHERBERERAFEENR K
relation to the payment settled by credit cards and corporate RNERE#ER - B HAY EiE /R0 E% o

customers and there is no recent history of default.

No loss allowance of trade receivables was made as at 31 20204 20193 A31H ' WETIRE S &
March 2020 and 2019. WRIE 5185 -
20. DEFERRED TAX 20. JEIERIE
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax (liabilities) RIERMIBE E RRERIE (AE) A I T
is as follows:
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Deferred tax assets FEFIRE E 595 5,163
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEE E (352) (288)
243 4,875
The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) INTARZMEFTERERNEZREERIEEE
recognised and movements thereon during the both years (BE) RESFENR:
ended:

Decelerated Accelerated

tax tax
Tax losses depreciation depreciation Total
BEFSE RBEHERE NEHERE st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
FAR FAT FAR THT
At 1 April 2018 K2018F4H1H 13 4,207 (931) 3,289
Credited (charged) to profit st AEzE
or loss (Note 12) (BEZEHR)
(FfFEE12) 1,198 956 (568) 1,586
At 31 March 2019 and 1 20195
April 2019 3A31HK
201954818 1,211 5,163 (1,499) 4,875
(Charged) credited to (BEEHR)
profit or loss (Note 12) sTAERE
(BiEE12) (443) (4,568) 379 (4,632)
At 31 March 2020 720204
3A31H 768 595 (1,120) 243

Palace Banquet Holdings Limited & 3245 A% AR A 7 wE
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 20. ELEBLE ()
Deferred tax assets are recognised for available tax losses EERFEEEBBNTENRRAIEEER
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit RARERTENERR  BEERBEER 8K
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 TR ° R20209F3 A31H - NEEMFIEEE K
March 2020, the Group had tax losses of approximately H b r] HR E B ZEE D BI49/582,911,0007 7T
HK$82,911,000 (2019: HK$25,636,000) and other deductible (20194 : 25,636,000/ T ) X% #4950,780,000/%5
temporary differences of approximately HK$50,780,000 JL(20194F : 38,674,000/8 7T ) ° FiJAE 518 Al £
(2019: HK$38,674,000). Tax losses can be carried forward PR HA 4582 DA AR VB4 SH AR SR FE R B A ©
against future taxable income indefinitely.
As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not recognise 7202093 A31 8 » 785 B 3 8 LA TH 518 I Al
deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of approximately R E R =5 51#978,265,000%7T (2019
HK$78,265,000 (2019: HK$18,297,000) and deductible % :18,297,000/ 70 ) & #47,177,000% 7T
temporary differences of approximately HK$47,177,000 (20194 : 7,382,000/ 7T ) FERRIEIERI I & 2 -
(2019: HK$7,382,000) due to the unpredictability of future TR R AR )7t £ A TEOR o
profit stream.
INVENTORIES 21. 7€
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Food R 5,648 3,308
TIME DEPOSITS WITH MATURITY OVER 22. ZIfiABB=EANEBEXR
THREE MONTHS
The effective interest rate on time deposits over six months FHHBBNEANERTFARONERENES
was 1.97% per annum (2019: nil). These deposits have an 1.97% (20194 : &) - ZEF AR FHEE A
average maturity of 6 months (2019: nil). A6{EA (20194 : £)
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23. BITERKREAE

Bank balances carry floating interest rate based on daily
bank deposit rates as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

MN20205 % 20193 A31 0  iRITHEBIZER
RITER AR ZENF RS -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 24. EZNREMENFERESNEARE
CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(a)

Trade the other payables () EBEZRHEMEMNRIE
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade payables B S ENFIE 2,058 16,185
Accruals (Note) FEstE R (Ki) 11,094 44,649
Deferred income PRIEW A 5,539 6,991
Provision for long service payment KRR S REE 480 1,504
Provision for unutilised annual leave REAFBREE 718 3,044
Total trade and other payables B 5 REMENRIBERE 19,889 72,373

Less: Non-current portion L FERNERED

— Deferred income —EEYA 3,023 4,101
— Accrued rental expenses —EETHESRX - 17,987
3,023 22,088
16,866 50,285

Note: Included in the balance as at 31 March 2020, there
was approximately HK$730,000 (2019: HK$2,187,000)
payable arising from acquisition of property, plant and

equipments.

Included in the balance as at 31 March 2020, there
was approximately HK$450,000 (2019: HK$630,000)

remuneration payable to the Directors.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019, the
carrying amount of accrual rental expenses of
HK$19,486,000 was reclassified to right-of-use assets.

Payment terms granted by suppliers are generally
within 50 days from the relevant purchases are made.
The Group has financial risk management policies in

place to ensure that all payables are settled within the

credit time-frame.

MisE: A2020F3 A31 BM & - BHEEI
BEYD 2 - RS M 3R A5 T A ) FE 3 X8
#49730,0005 7T (20194F : 2,187,000/

) ©

R2020F3 A31 HME&#HTR - BIEER
EENFHFM4450,000/8 7T (20194 :

630,000/ 7T ) °

st
'uA\ faran

Y=

R2019F4 A1 BB BT 1R E %R 5 1655
% FEFEESR X AMERTE19,486,000/8 T2
BN BEFERAEEE-

{HRE 7 15 A0 5 SR — AR M H AR B SR AB 2 50
AR AEERETBHR
BN SRENMEERRAEN -

BER - LARE(RPR
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 24. EZ R EMENTERESNERE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(%)

(a)

(b)

Trade the other payables (Continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

() EZRHEMENRE(E)
AT ARBERRRERARZ2IINE S

FE S SR IRRR B D AT -

2020 2019
20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FAT

Within 30 days 30K 2,058 16,185

Contract liabilities

The contract liabilities represented the deposits
received from customers for banquet services. The
payment terms are by installments which stipulated in
the banquet contracts.

(b)

S 2L o> o
it 25
pui
ﬁﬁ

o &

ERPRESRBERNRE
SESEHTREND BNRTT

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Banquet services =& R
— Current portion — BNHERER 15 51,826 39,909
— Non-current portion — JEBNHEAER 1D 455 2,414
52,281 42,323
The following table sets out the revenue and other TRIIFTARENHNE DB BB D BER
income recognised that was included in the contract Woas B ELAB YA o
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year.
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Banquet services =2 R% 37,257 44,166
27 Annual Report 2020 &%
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

25. BANK BORROWINGS

25. SRITIER

Carrying amount repayable (based on schedule repayment

FENBREE (IRERGHMEA 8RR B HE

st

dates set out in the loan agreements): =
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within one year —&R 31,063 26,970
After one year but within two years —F AL BENBAMRSE 11,438 16,604
After two years but within five years ME L - BRNBRARSE 2,285 13,733
44,786 57,307

Carrying amount repayable (shown under current liabilities)
contain a repayment on demand clause:

FEMREE (RRBRETIIR) B8 RERE

B

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Within one year —FR 44,786 57,307

As at 31 March 2020, the bank borrowings carried floating
interest rate of 1 month HIBOR plus 1% to 2.5% per annum
(2019: 1 month HIBOR plus 1% to 2.5% per annum) and
BLR minus 1.5% to 2% per annum (2019: BLR minus 2%
to 3% per annum). The effective interest rates on the bank
borrowings are 2.98% (2019: 3.42%) per annum during the
year ended 31 March 2020.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the bank borrowings
and credit facilities available to the business cards are
secured by the Group's deposit placed for a life insurance
policy amounting to approximately HK$15,217,000 (2019:
HK$15,079,000).

The Group's corporate purchasing card was guaranteed by
a director of the Company, to the extent of HK$3,700,000
(2019: HK$4,050,000) as at 31 March 2020.

As at 31 March 2020, the bank has provided financial
guarantee of HK$2,085,000 (2019: HK$2,085,000) and
performance bond of HK$1,200,000 (2019: HK$1,200,000)
to the landlords of the Group as deposits to secure the
tenants’ due performance and observances of the terms and
conditions contained in the tenancy agreements.

7202093 8318 @ iR17E IR 18 A BB RTT
RIZEREMEB1%E2.5% (20195 1{EAF
BIRTRERBINEBI1%E2.5% ) REERF
RBEB1.5%E2% (2019F : REZRF R F
B2%%E3% )8 FEFREETE - IREE2020
FIAMBALEE ROTERNERFHRXRA
2.98% (20194 : 3.42%) °

R2020F K%2019F3 8318 » SRITERLE
X¥RANSEERERASERASRER
RETE K 415,217,000 T (20194F
15,079,000/ 7T ) °

MR2020F3A31H  AEBEMNEERERAARN
naE—BESER EREAE3,700,0008 T
(20194F : 4,050,000/ 7T, ) °

7202093 A318  RITE AARE B EiRE
2,085,000/ 7T (20194 : 2,085,000 7T ) K984
T HERX%1,200,00078 7T (20194F © 1,200,000
TLMBENRES  MEARBEZLZEITREST
RERZATENER R IEGNEE -

Palace Banquet Holdings Limited & 3245 A% AR A 7 22



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

o 8 B S R B 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

26. PROVISION FOR REINSTATEMENT COSTS 26. IE1E R AEBE

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$000
FET F& T
At 1 April R4R1H 8,298 6,314
Additions VIN=E 2,209 2,127
Payment for reinstatement costs BB AT 3R (766) =
Concession of reinstatement costs (Notes 8 B ANER (FIFE8%33)
and 33) (361) (311)
Unwinding of discount on provision (Note 11) BEBEIREE (Fi5E11) 123 168
At 31 March M3H31H 9,503 8,298
Analysed into DT
Current portion BNERER 2 1,258 2,620
Non-current portion JEBNERER > 8,245 5,678
At 31 March M3HA31H 9,503 8,298
Provision for reinstatement costs is recognised at the net BEXRIBREBEZRASERESECTHANEE
present value of costs to be incurred for the reinstatement W) SEAS 18 EE A B AN PR 8 A A8 40 i e B )5 3R
of the leased property used by the Group for its operations BERER

upon expiration of the relevant lease.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B&

Details of movements of authorised and issued share capital

of the Company are as follows:

AATEEREBTRALBEMT -

Number of
shares Share capital
gy =4 [N
HK$
BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each TREAREFH0.018 7T
Authorised: ERE
On the date of incorporation (Note a) ReEfa sz B8 (KisEa) 38,000,000 380,000
Increase on authorised share capital (Note b)  JEFER AL (b ) 4,962,000,000 49,620,000
As at 31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 and 31 72019438310 - 20194
March 2020 4818 N20203AH31H 5,000,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRERAZ:
On the dated of incorporation (Note a) Rtz B 2R (BdsEa) 100 1
New ordinary shares issued on 28 June 2018  1A2018%F 6 A28 H F1THIFT L
(Note a) A (PifiEa) 9,900 99
Capitalisation issue of shares (Note c) BT D (Fiskc) 749,990,000 7,499,900
Shares issued in relation to the global BIREHREEETRND
offering (Note d) (HtzEd) 250,000,000 2,500,000
As at 31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 and 31 #201943 8310 20194
March 2020 4818 N20203A31H 1,000,000,000 10,000,000

All new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all

BFBRORAAETESERAERNERRSE

respects. fézs o
Notes: BiaE -
(@)  Upon the incorporation on 7 June 2018, the Company had (@ 201846 A7 H MM » N2 RIHYEE KR

an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each. On the same
date, 100 shares with par value of HK$0.01 were allotted and
issued as fully paid to the companies owned by the Ultimate
Shareholders. On 28 June 2019, 9,900 shares with par value
of HK$0.01 were allotted and issued as fully paid to the

companies owned by the Ultimate Shareholders pursuant to

the reorganisation.

K /380,000 * 2 AFREEO0.0148 L
38,000,000% & 3@A% ° [F B 100 E{E £0.01
BITHROBBEERETTRERREEN
A7) °R201946H28H * 9,900/% E & £0.01
BITHRNCREEAMREE RBEITTRE
REFEER AR

Palace Banquet Holdings Limited & 3245 A% AR A 7
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

28.

(b)

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company on 25 January 2019, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased from HK$380,000 to
HK$50,000,000 by the creation of an additional 4,962,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company on 25 January 2019 and conditional upon
the share premium account of the Company being credited as
a result of the global offering, the Directors are authorised to
capitalise an amount of HK$7,499,900 standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company by applying
such sum in paying up in full at par of 749,990,000 shares
for allotment and issue to the then shareholders.

On 15 February 2019, the Company issued 250,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.5 per
share pursuant to the global offering and listing of the
Company'’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the
Group has entered the following non-cash transactions;

(a)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of approximately HK$128,985,000
and HK$125,700,000 respectively, in respect of
lease arrangements for leased restaurants and
warehouse. The addition of right-of-use assets includes
HK$2,209,000 reinstatement costs and HK$1,076,000
imputed interest on rental deposits on initial
recognition.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
entered into rent concession agreements and
derecognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
approximately HK$6,173,000.

o 8 B S R B 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

27. B (&)
Mizk: (48)

RIBEARAFBERNR201951A25BBBH
EMAZER  BBERETREE.01EITH
4,962,000,0008% 8% 5 * AR Bl KEERR A A
380,000/8 7T H1Z50,000,0007% 7T °

(b)

(0 MREAQARMRN2019F1 4258 BBNER
RBRIEAR ARG R EREZREEHSE
HIRFERE  EEEREKARRRGORERD
#EAREA7,499,900/8 LA AL LAB) B A 5B I1E
A {8 1) HL B AR 3R i 3% ]2 8617 749,990, 000 A% 4%
TR ©

R2019F 28158 AR R RIBEEIREE KA
A AR AR X P E AR _E TR (BB S R%0.578 7T
ZE1TEREME0.015 T/250,000,0000% I 38
f% o

FEFRERS
HZE2020F %2019F3 310 ILEE - AEE
BHETUTIHEEERS

28.

B ZE2020F3A31BLEFE AEEH
HEBEREEMNBEELHENIERS
ANEFHREERTEEAES A ALY
128,985,000 7T % 125,700,000/8 JT °
NEFAREEDREE NERREER
752,209,0008 L RS ZEMNIHEF B
1,076,000/ 7T °

(a)

HZE2020F3A31HIEFE  REBFSL
HeBEha TRIFEREAEEER
FHEAE46,173,000/E T °
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

28. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(@

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
entered into sponsorship agreement with an utility
company. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the sponsorship agreement, the Group received
certain items of property, plant and equipments with
a total value of approximately HK$1,356,000 (2019:
HK$2,271,000) at nil consideration. The Group
has capitalised these items of property, plant and
equipments with corresponding entries to a deferred
income account (included in other payables) on receipt
of such items.

Addition of property, plant and equipment included
reinstatement costs amounting to approximately
HK$2,127,000 (2020: nil) for the year ended 31 March
2019, which do not involve any cash payment.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, certain
operating subsidiaries have issued and allotted
1,999,998 ordinary shares at the consideration of HK$1
per share. The amount of HK$1,698,000 was settled
through amounts due to shareholders and the amount
of HK$301,998 was settled through amounts due from
shareholders.

28. FEFBERSH ()

(c)

REZE2020F3A831BILEE - ANE=F
NEFZ A B E] M BBk o IRIBEE B
FNER RGNS  AEEEERRETY
* HEMEEEE  #E4/51,356,000
T (20194 : 2,271,000/ 7T) - NEE
ERKEZEYE - BRE R&EE B i
EMEE ARZHABECERAREREARN
(FFAHMERMAFIE) -

HE201943A31HILFE  AEWE
= &R B IEEERKAN492,127,000%
70 (20204F : &) » B W ES RAEMRE
R

HZE2019F3A31HILEE  FETEE
BB A RIE 217 R B35 1,999,998 % & il
& REAESR1BIIT - ©%1,698,000
B EBERNRERELEE mMEE
301,998 B LB BIER IR N IBLEE -
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29. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

o 8 B S R B 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the consolidated statement of cash flows

as cash flows from financing activities.

Financing

1 April 2019  cash flows

20195
4F1H REBEBRLRE
HK$'000 HK$'000

29. REMEEFHNEEH R

TRAVAEERERETHNEEZLS B
ReFFReE - RAREEINAERTR
;}ILE = jf’iXfﬁ%mugﬁﬂﬁ/\\éﬁﬁfﬁiﬂmi%W
DERBETDAFSHRERENARG -

Non-cash changes

FREEH
Finance costs  New lease Lease 31 March
incurred agreements modification 2020
BELE 20204

MBRA  HEEGHE HEBY 3A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THER FHET FET THET FET FAT
(Note)
CES)
Bank borrowings RITIER 57,307 (12,521) - = 44,786
Interest payable FERFS = (1,625) 1,625 = = =
Lease liabilities HERE 472,089 (111,817) 20,985 125,700 (6,173) 500,784
529,396 (125,963) 22,610 125,700 (6,173) 545,570
Financing cash Finance costs
1 April 2018 flows incurred 31 March 2019
20184 BEE4L 20194
4718 ®ERSRE IR IDWIN 3A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FHT
(Note)
(HE)
Bank borrowings RITE K 58,334 (1,027) = 57,307
Interest payable FESTFILE = (2,142) 2,142 =
58,334 (3,169) 2,142 57,307

Note: The cash flows make up the net amount of new borrowing
raised and repayments of bank borrowings and lease liabilities

in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

it MeREERERRERERAMBSIIER
REERTEFAREE A EANFE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 30. KEHERIE
The Group as lessee AEBEREBEA
The Group leases its restaurants, office premise, warehouses, AEERBRKEHERFHAELEE BAEY
car park, and advertising lightboxes under operating lease ¥ RPE -RBMRESEMR BZE201943H
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for 31ELIEFE  WEFANIRRBER -2 F5EE -
original terms ranging from one to seven years for the year
ended 31 March 2019.
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had commitments for MR2019F3 A31 8 » 25 Bl#GE i 2RI R Al
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable HA KA LM EZ N REMERNK - AT :
operating lease which fall due as follows:
2019
20194
HK$'000
FET
Within one year —FR 135,286
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_ZERF (BREEEME) 214,924
Over five years RERE 27,351
377,561

In addition, the operating lease rentals for the restaurant is
based on the higher of a fixed rental and a contingent rent
based on the sales of the restaurant pursuant to the terms
and conditions set out in the respective rental agreements.
As the future sales of the restaurant could not be reliably
determined, the relevant contingent rent has not been
included above and only the minimum lease commitments
have been included in the above table.

AN BB EEEER S HERBEEES MK
AEEHREE MAAES HREAEEER
TR LRI ENEZHE - RN EAR 5
EEEENARRHEE  SREAEHE W ESA
ExR - WER ERFARBREAE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 30. ER&HEHRE &)

31.

32.

(Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, operating lease payments represent
rentals payable by the Group for certain of its restaurants,
office premise, warehouses, car park, and advertising
lightboxes. Leases are negotiated for a term ranging from
one to seven years and rentals are fixed and subjected to
contingent rent throughout the rental period.

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
restaurants, office premise, warehouses, car park, and
advertising lightboxes which the leases were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. The Group has
initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach. Under this approach, the Group adjusted the
opening balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to these leases (see Note 2). From 1 April 2019
onwards, future lease payments are recognised as lease
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with the policies set out in Note 3, and the
details regarding the Group’s future lease payments are
disclosed in Note 17.

AEBEREBEA (B)

20193 A31 0  KEHENKIEAEEFE
AETEE BAEYE RE REURESE
HMEMNHES HENHEBCERETA St
F BESEE  HEAREEESHERRAHE
ﬁo

AEEAETEE BAEYE BE RSB
MESBEENARA  BEASXIIBRESS
SR ENB1 7RO EACENE - AEE KA
KISREBWEBERERAB B BHREERE 16
SR o RIS 0% - AEER2019F4 A1 HFAR
Hyte UERRZEHAEFENHEERE
(RBtsE2) - B20194E4 A1 B # - AR 7357
BEGR  RRBEMNTRERE M BRI RERE
HEBE FREAEERRBENKOFITRN
SE17HE -

CAPITAL COMMITMENT 31. EREE
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Capital expenditure in respect of the ERTAE M AR RERE M RE
acquisition of property, plant and BENKEDE  BER
equipment contracted for but not provided RIBERFZ
in the consolidated financial statements - 363

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The total expense recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2020 of approximately HK$8,154,000 (2019:
HK$9,873,000) represents contributions payable to the MPF
Scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plan.

32. RKEFEHE

HZE2020F3A31HLLFE  FiEmNERNE
2 498,154,000/8 7T (20194 : 9,873,000/%
T ) AN E B R A S s 2R BISIBA A LL R AT
SRR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into transaction with related

parties as follows:

(a)

Transactions with related parties

. BABERS

BEaMBRESAREEIN NEE LK
RINATR 5

() EREBITNXZ

Related party Nature of transaction Notes Year ended 31 March
S REME B R HBE3A318LLEE
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Able Cheer Development Operating lease rental (i) 9,231 9,108
Limited (“Able Cheer")
HEIRERB R AR wEREHe
([HEBE])
Art Ocean Limited (“Art Operating lease rental (i) 648 648
Ocean”)
HEBR AR ([HEE]) KEHER S
Eagle Way Development Operating lease rental (iii) - 330
Limited
BERERBR AR KEHERe
Superwell Holding Limited Operating lease rental (iv) - 4,180
BRI B R AR LETHER S
Mr. Chan Catering service income (v) 101 134
R 5T A BEARIFUA
Ms.Chen Catering service income (v) 20 9
PRz BERBRFE WA
Ms Qian Catering service income (v) 32 39
e BEARIFUA
Mr. Chan’s sons Salaries (vi) 402 400
BRICER T &
Mr. Chan’s wife Salaries (vi) 268 -
FRIEAEME T e

Palace Banquet Holdings Limited & 3245 A% AR A 7
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The a
direct

The lease is charged at terms mutually agreed by
the parties. During the year ended 31 March 2020,
lease payment made to Able Cheer is approximately
HK$9,231,000 net of the rent concession approximately
HK$157,000 granted by Able Cheer.

The lease was charged at terms mutually agreed by
the parties. During the year ended 31 March 2020,
lease payment made to Art Ocean is approximately
HK$648,000.

The lease was charged at terms mutually agreed by the
parties. The agreement was terminated during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

The lease was charged at terms mutually agreed by
the parties. The agreement was terminated during the
yea r ended 31 March 2019 and the related party has
waived the Group to reinstate the leased property. The
provision for reinstatement cost for the leased property
of approximately HK$311,000 was recorded as a
deemed contribution from the controlling shareholder
under other reserves.

Catering services income was made at term mutually
agreed by the parties.

Salaries were charged according to the terms entered
into between the parties.

bove related companies are companies of which a
or of the Company is their beneficial shareholder

and director.

o 8 B S R B 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

33. B¢ SRR Z (8)

(a)

ERBINXS (8)
Pt & -

.

() HEERTHE R HEOERNERES - 8
£20203A31 B LEFE - M 278
499,231,000/ TCE IR FELL R H 607
LR H#)157,000/8 7T °

TEIRFT 87T 15 E MR UERTE € - &
F2020F3A31 B LEFE - mEE 7
E49648,0005% 7T ©

(ii)

HERINE T EMNBRRKIBES -
ZE R EE2019F3A31 B IEFEER
_u:o

(iii)

REIRETAE 75 19 E B R IRERFE € © 5%
WEREE2019F3A31BILFERIE
R B REESEREYE - A
B 2 BE R A EAEXI311,0007 7T A
IRAHMEBET 2 HE AERRERED

(iv)

B R IRTEULAIZRT K9 75 155 E Y 16 SR 2

=]
1= °

(v)

2 TR AT £ 75 2 [ 5T 3289 R 3R UR
HR

(vi)

FRBEMARIARARR —REEREER
BREEZNRE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

Certain directors and their close family member of
the Company are the registered owner of restaurant
licenses and liquor licenses which are provided to the
Group at nil consideration during both years.

A director of the Company provided an office for the
Group to use at nil consideration during both years.

The Group entered into several tenancy agreements
with related companies, of which a director of the
Company is their beneficial shareholder and director,
for leasing of properties as restaurant, office premises
and carpark. As at 31 March 2020, the rental
deposits paid to related companies of approximately
HK$1,696,000 (2019: HK$1,621,000) have been
recognised as current rental deposits.

Under a deed of indemnity dated 25 January 2019,
the Controlling Shareholder of the Company has
undertaken to provide indemnities on a joint and
several basis in respect of, among other matters,
all claims, payments, suits, damages, settlement
payments, costs and expenses which would be
incurred or suffered by the Group as a result of any
litigation, arbitration and/or legal proceedings, whether
of criminal, administrative, contractual, tortuous or
otherwise nature against any member of the Group
in relation to any act, non-performance, omission or
otherwise of any member of the Group on or before
the listing of the Company.

(a)

3. B SRR B (®)

ERBINXS (8)
ARRETEEREETREXNE RRE
EREAE 2 BERFAA  BEERNH
EFERTERERETAKE -

ARR—BEERMEFEATRERMH
—EMARETAEBEER -

AREBEHBH AR (ARE—REZA
HESRRERES)IUZHHEERR
NHEBMERBIE - RAEMERAS
i - R2020%F3A318 ' MEAH AR X
HFH S 491,696,000/ 7T (20194 :
1,621,000 7T ) EfERARHHESES

RiEH 5201941 A25H M REREZ
% ARA T IR AR B AR - R R R AR
HEED (KR EE)RAAR LMk 25l
A A& E TR 8 A B E T8 R
B4 GiRREMITABBmEE AL
EAIAKE R IR HAEMFA R
SEERF (TRAME TR 648 &
S EMEREE) ML AEERBEHS
THRE ER - BERE - MEX
I8 AN R AR (E
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)  33. BEA RS (&)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) FEEEAESHM
During the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the RAEE2020% % 20193318 EFE -
remuneration of the Directors and other members of EERFEEBEBEMKENFTHMAT :

key management are as follows:

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Short-term benefits SHIE A 9,081 9,474
Post-employment benefits B2 2 A 137 232
9,218 9,706

The remuneration of the Directors and key executives EERFETHRAENTHEL2ZMESF
is determined by having regard to his performance and EHRERBRNEBARMNER R TSEE

the subsidiaries’ performance and market trends for MEE °
the both years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 34. T EKIB A TINFEE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 AREBEMN2020F %2019F3 A3 1 BN EZME
March 2020 and 2019 are as follows: NARFIBAT :

Effective interest

held as at
RUTEE
FENERESR
Place of
incorporation Issued and
and kind of Date of fully paid Principal activities and
Name legal entity incorporation share capital 2020 2019 place of operation
EABRTM ERTR
L RAUBEREE FEMRYAH BRRA 20206 2019 FEEBREXHE
Directly held subsidiary
EREANHELR:
Wonderful Brocade Limited BVI 9 November 2017 USD100 100% 100% Investment holding
PRERRT RERLES  2017F11798 100%7T REER
Indirectly held subsidiaries:
BEEENHEAR:
All Perfect Limited Hong Kong 19 December 2014 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
in Hong Kong
EELLNG &R 2014128198 1,000,0007T REBLERBER
As Great (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong 10 January 2019 HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
mE (B8 BRAR &R 201917108 1B EEER
Barry Investments Limited Hong Kong 27 November 2015  HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
in Hong Kong
BAREBRRT B 2015118278 1,000,000/ 7T RNEBEEREE
Better Winner Limited Hong Kong 16 December 2011 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
in Hong Kong
BEARAR BE 20114128168 1,000,0007T REBEEREER
China Centre Limited Hong Kong 12 January 2007 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Inactive (Note)
FEARAA BE 200717128 1,000,000/ 7 TExis (M)
Earn Billion Limited Hong Kong 10 March 2017 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
in Hong Kong
ERARAR B 201793R108 1,000,000/ 7 NEBEETEE
Empire Glory Limited Hong Kong 23 March 2012 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
in Hong Kong
EFARAT BB 201243A23R 1,000,000/ 7 RNEBLERER
Eternal Grand (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 30 October 2019 HK$1 100% - Inactive
Limited
Bk (BR)BRLA &R 2019108308 1AL TEER
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SOMKERME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 34. = EM B A RINEE (&)
(Continued)

Effective interest

held as at
RUATEE
FENERESR
Place of
incorporation Issued and
and kind of Date of fully paid Principal activities and
Name legal entity incorporation share capital 2020 2019 place of operation
EARRE BERTR
L RUBEREE FEMRYAH BRRA 2020 20195 FEXBREXLH
Friend Rich Limited Hong Kong 30 March 2006 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Inactive (Note)
REBRRA &R 200653 A308 1,000,0007%7T gExis (M)
Full Satisfied (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 20 December 2019 HK$1 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
Limited in Hong Kong
MR (BB)BRAA BE 201912208 157 NEERERVER
Global Gourmet Catering Hong Kong 23 October 2019 HK$10,000 100% - Inactive
Services Management
(H.K.) Limited
REXRENER (BB)R BE 2019F10A238  10,000%7T TEXK
[RAR
Gold Harvest Limited Hong Kong 10 February 2012 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Inactive
ERERAH BE 2012%2A108 1,000,000/ 7T EE
Gold Silver Limited Hong Kong 29 December 2012 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
in Hong Kong
EREB A BE 2012912A298  1,000,000% 7T NEEREHER
Gold Year International Hong Kong 20 May 2011 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
Limited in Hong Kong
TRERBR AT BE 2011465A208 1,000,0007%7T REEREHAER
Good Lucky Investments Hong Kong 29 May 2008 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
Limited in Hong Kong
HERERRAA BE 2008454298 1,000,000/ 7T REBLEPBER
Lucky Reach Limited Hong Kong 19 January 2010 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
in Hong Kong
ERBRAF BE 2010617198 1,000,0007%7T REEREHVER
Million Year (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong 21 May 2007 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Inactive (Note)
BE (BE)BRRA BE 200745A218 1,000,000/t TEER (M)
Pacific Energy Limited Hong Kong 22 February 2008 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
in Hong Kong
JIE:L YN BB 2008%2A228 1,000,000/ 7T REBLEPER
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 34. S EMf B AT WS (&)
(Continued)

Effective interest

held as at
RUATEE
FENERESR
Place of
incorporation Issued and
and kind of Date of fully paid Principal activities and
Name legal entity incorporation share capital 2020 2019 place of operation
EARRE BERTR
L RAUBEREE FEMKYAH BRRA 20205 20195 FEXBREXHH
Palace Group Management Hong Kong 16 December 2015  HK$10,000 100% 100% Provision of management
Limited and administrative
services to group
companies
ER&EERAR BE 20154128168 10,0007 MEELQRREEERITR
PR
Perfect Rainbow Limited Hong Kong 20 March 2015 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
in Hong Kong
G371 YN BE 201563A208 1,000,000 RNEEREDER
Sea Nice Limited Hong Kong 2 December 2016 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
in Hong Kong
BEARAR BE 2016%12A2AR 1,000,0007%7C REBEERAER
Smart Gain International Hong Kong 8 July 2016 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
Limited in Hong Kong
RHERARAR B 201657H8H 1,000,0007%7T NEERERER
Sunny Brand Limited Hong Kong 7 October 2016 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
in Hong Kong
BBARAR Bk 2016F10A78 1,000,0007%7T REEREHER
Super Force Limited Hong Kong 4 November 2016 HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
in Hong Kong
KRERAR &R 2016511848 1,000,0007%7T REBEERAER
Well Strong Development Hong Kong 18 November 2010  HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Chinese restaurant operation
Limited in Hong Kong
BAERBRAF BE 2010611A188  1,000,000% 7T 100% 100% MEBLERNEER
Note: The Chinese restaurant operation of the subsidiaries were MicE: ZEMBARMP BB EBNEE202043
ceased during the year ended 31 March 2020. A31BIEFERIE-

Palace Banquet Holdings Limited & 3245 A% AR A 7 136



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant
to the resolution passed on 25 January 2019 to give the
eligible persons (as mentioned in the following paragraph)
an opportunity to have a personal stake in our Company
and help motivate them to optimise their future performance
and efficiency to our Group and/or to reward them for
their past contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise
maintain on-going relationships with such eligible persons
who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will
be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of our
Group, and additionally in the case of Executives (as defined
below), to enable our Group to attract and retain individuals
with experience and ability and/or to reward them for their
past contributions.

Eligible participants of the share option scheme include (a)
any executive director of, manager of, or other employee
holding an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar
position in any member of our Group, any full-time or part-
time employee, or a person for the time being seconded to
work full-time or part-time for any member of our Group;
(b) a director or proposed director (including an independent
non-executive director) of any member of our Group; (c) a
direct or indirect shareholder of any member of our Group;
(d) a supplier of goods or services to any member of our
Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business or joint venture
partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of our Group; (f) a person or entity that
provides design, research, development or other support or
any advisory, consultancy, professional or other services to
any member of our Group; (g) an associate of any of the
persons referred to in paragraphs (a) to (c) above; and (h)
any person involved in the business affairs of the Company
whom our board determines to be appropriate to participate
in the share option scheme.

No share options are granted since the adoption of the share
option scheme and there are no share options outstanding
as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

o 8 B S R B 51

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

35. B RS

AARRIER2019F1 A25HEBBRARER
ﬁ%%%%%% BTERERAL (RT—EH#

i) FEARRREAROEE WA SR
ﬂaéﬁ$%l%ﬁﬁ&m.lﬁ/jﬁﬁ$@
FER BB T LASEE) AR RIS IA R
N EEUASENES ERAKNMNE BE
BR/EAEEEBENNKEEEFINAEE
MEZE ERIARNZEBERALHIFREHN
F: BEHTBRAB (EERTX)ME @ AJEAX

SEERMATREBERALR SR RERE
M B R4 T 2B -

BREAZNSERALEEQEAEEER
RERRMEATES KB EMBEET
B-EE EEBAURVOEBES T2
B RBESNATAEEEAKE R FEE
ERSFEBAL: OAKEIAKERARNE
EFRREESF (BRBUFRITES) : (08K
BEMKEARNESRERER  (d)RAAE
BEMKERRRTERIMEOEER : ()
AEBEAKERARNETF R  EBHEE
RERBHE FHEEA AER REBRIRE:
(HAARKEEMKE A REHEE X HE
sk E b STIR SR - A BEREMRSE
MEAREE  (9) L3 (@)= (OB ERMAL
BB A RNFRARBER BEEERTE
RERSHEBREREMAL-

BB T SRR A A TS - IR T REMRE : R
2020F N 201943 A31 8 -« W EBB AL HE M AR1T
o
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020F3A31HILFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36. BIIEARR T

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT

Non-current asset kRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—RHERE R AR E 17 17

Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N ENEIE 7S] 88,887 9,213
Prepayments TR IR 184 252
Bank balances IRITHEER 5,725 88,478
94,796 97,943
Current liability =R

Accruals fEsTE A 1,126 759
Net current assets REEEFE 93,670 97,184
93,687 97,201

Capital and reserves EAXREE
Share capital [N 10,000 10,000
Reserves (Note) e (PiEE) 83,687 87,201
93,687 97,201
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%2020%3A318IEFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36. Bi##kRE (&)

37.

(Continued)

Note: Movements in the reserves during the prior period and current
year are as follow:

fieE: R E—HRRAFENFEEZENT

Accumulated

Share premium Other reserves losses Total
IR A7 %R (8 Hi % ESy ] #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000
FET FTHET FHET FTERT
On 7 June 2018 (date of 720186 H7H
incorporation) (G L
BE) - - - -
Share issued in connection MERBERET
with the global offering 2R3 122,500 - - 122,500
Capitalisation issue B RAT (7,500) - - (7,500)
Transaction costs attributable Z2RBEEZRH
to the global offering 5% (14,283) - - (14,283)
Deemed contribution by a WRBERBRRN
controlling shareholder HE - 4,950 - 4,950
Reserve arising from group EESAMEEZ
reorganisation #E - 17 - 17
Loss and total HABEREE
comprehensive expenses o b
for the period - - (18,483) (18,483)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 #201953H31H
April 2019 K2019%F
4A1H 100,717 4,967 (18,483) 87,201
Loss and total FABEREE
comprehensive expenses B
for the year - - (3,514) (3,514)
At 31 March 2020 7A202063A31H 100,717 4,967 (21,997) 83,687
EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 37. MEHPREE

The COVID-19 outbreak and the subsequent quarantine and
distancing measures imposed by the The Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region have had a
negative impact on the operations of the Group. Although
the financial performance of the restaurants might not
be fully returned to the level before the COVID-19 in the
upcoming financial year, the operating performance of the
restaurants in April and May 2020 is gradually improving.

The Group has been proactively negotiating with landlords
on rent concession and reduction, and adjusted the operating
hours of the restaurants and roster of staff members in order
to optimise staff and other operating costs.

Up to the date on which this set of consolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue, the Group is still in the
process of assessing the impacts of the COVID-19 outbreak
on the Group's performance in year ending 31 March 2021
and is currently unable to estimate the quantitative impacts
to the Group.

COVID-19/8 & R BB FFRITRE BT HLE BT
MRk EEEE S AEBNEEEKAT
TE - BREREMNTEEEREEEN T —8
HEE T2 REZRCOVID-19Z 1518 % 2 B HIK
I MEEIE R 20204 A K5 A RS S EEIE X
WRE o

AEE-—ERGEXFRLHEHSETER I
ERABREENEXEEIETHESR  UE(LR
TREMGEEMRA -

HEEAGEMBRFTERETEZEH  AEE D
ERHECOVID- 19 B B H AR E#H E202143H
S1HIEFEMEENTE - B Al HEEbETE
REENSLFE-
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Financial Summary

Hrf ¥esiillh =
RESULTS E 4+
Year ended 31 March
BZE3A3MBLEEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20204 20194 20184 20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FHAT FHTT T FHIT
Revenue Wz 650,801 848,567 770,143 635,106 596,013
(Loss) profit before tax ~ Fial (E518) & F (106,338) 50,703 64,653 49,908 49,844
Income tax expenses FriSHif (6,033) (12,954) (11,671) (9,639) (9,970)
(112,371) 37,749 52,982 40,269 39,874
Attributable to: FE1G
Owner of the Company ZARXF#HA A (112,371) 37,749 52,982 40,394 42,294
Non-controlling FEIE IR B
interests - - - (125) (2,420)
(112,371) 37,749 52,982 40,269 39,874

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EXE- -BERIIFERER

INTERESTS
As at 31 March
MA3A31H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20205 20194 20184 20174 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FHIT FHIT T
Total Assets BEE 765,894 439,560 284,671 284,791 267,565
Total Liabilities FN=Er (627,595) (188,890) (174,728) (210,019) (153,617)
Total Equity g 138,299 250,670 109,943 74,772 113,948
Equity s
Equity attributable to AR AR FEAG
shareholders of the M
Company 138,299 250,670 109,943 74,772 113,447
Non-controlling eI
interests - - - - 501
138,299 250,670 109,943 74,772 113,948

The consolidated financial results of the Group for the year ended A& EEZE20204F &2019F3A31H IEFERNEREE
31 March 2020 and 2019 is set out in this annual report while  IEEEZFNAFR  MEZ2016%F - 20174F K%2018%F
such for the years ended 31 March 2016, 2017 and 2018 are 3A31HIEFEMELREMISEEBEE AR RRK
extracted from the Prospectus of the Company. i

The summary above does not form part of the audited EXBIEWTEREEZGETBHEREN—FD
consolidated financial statements.

Palace Banquet Holdings Limited & 3245 A% AR A 7 740
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